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Leveraging our international network covering ocean, land,

and air to become the world’s leading global logistics and megacarrier group
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiarics

Thousands of

Miltions of yen U5, dollars*

For the years ended March 31 2005 2004 2003 2005
Revenues ¥1,606,098 ¥1,398,320 ¥1,249.242 514,955,753
Operating income 161,375 91,933 69,123 1,502,701
Income belore exiraordinary items 154,803 74,663 50,344 1,441,506
Net income 71,326 34811 14,293 664,181
Total assels 1,476.227 1,376,664 1357,170 13,746,406
Interest-bearing debt 630,054 654,481 691,398 5,860,974
Total sharchelders’ equity 427771 358,045 288,363 3.983,339
Return on equity (ROE} (%) 18.2 10.8 4.7
Equity ratio (%) 19.0 26.0 224

Yen U5, dollars?
Net income per share™* ¥ 58.12 Y 2827 Y 1148 $0.54
Shareholders’ equity per share 350.10 29_2.88 N 23381 7 3.2:‘)_-
Dividends per share 18.00 10.00 7.50 017

* The dollur amounts represent the arithmetical results of transiating ven to dollars using the exchange vate prevailing on March 31, 2005, which
was ¥107.39 to US$1.00. Such dollar ameunts are solcly for the convenience of readers outside Japar and are not intended to imply that the yen
amotnts have been, or could be, readily converted, realized, or settled in dollars at that rate or any other rate of exchange.

** In the fiscal year ended March 21, 2003, the Company applicd the Accounting Standards Related to Accounting for Net Incame per Share
{Corporate Accounting Standard No. 2) and Guidelines for Applving Accounting Standards Related te Net Income per Share (Guideline No. 4 for
Applving Corporate Accounting Standdards) to caleulate primary and fully diluted ret income per share. The impact of these changes was minimai.
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Return on Equity (ROE)

e Return on invested capital {ROIC) improved from 5.76% to Q.44%.

"fﬂ? .'

® In the fiscal vear that ended on March 31, 2005 operating performance 1eached record levels. resulting from

increased operations and higher [reight rates in the shipping segiment. plus higher revenues from logistics operations.

o Annual dividends per share rose ¥8, 10 ¥18 (including a commemorative dividend of ¥2 per share}.
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MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT

As we celebrate our 120th anniversary of establishment, we aim to continue evolving
dand growing as a global logistics and megacarrier group.

n the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, the NYK
Group benefited from growing shipping demand,
fucled by a robust global economy, with particularly
strong economic growth in the Peoples Republic of
China (PRC). Owing o this rise in demand, combined
with dreless cost-cutting elforts, revenues expanded
14.9%, 10 Y1,606.} hillion, operating income surged
75.3%. 1o Y1614 hillion, income hefore extraordinary
items rose 107.3%, 10 Y154.8 billion, and net income
jumped 104.9%_ 10 Y71.3 billion.

Successful Conclusion of “Forward 120"

T he fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, was the {inal year
for “Forward 120,” the medium- to long-term management
plan that began in April 2003, In “Forward 120, we
formalized three strategies to bolster our revenue base and
marshal our corporate energies, We umplemented all the
initiatives outlined in this plan, and exceeded all the
numerttcal targets that we set.

The first of these strategies was aur “expansion ol
the global logistics business.” We integrated our activilies
under the NYK Logstics brand, participaied enthusiasti-
cally in a finished-vehicle terminal in the TRC, and sub-

stantially expanded our car-related business in Europe.

“Forwakb 120" TARGETs

Millions of yen

The second strategy was the “global development of the
bulk and energy transport business.” We concluded new
lang-term contracts with custorners in the PRC and South
Korea, and cultivated new business, including business in
the Atlantic region involving LNG and wood chips.

Qur third siralegy was “stabilizing profitability in
the comainer transport business,” which we pursued by
cementing long-term customer relationships and steadily
pursuing cost-reduction apporunities, contributing to
stable profitability. Our success in achieving the goals we
set with “Forward 120 helped firm up our fundamental
strengths and paved the way for new breakthroughs.

In March 2005, we created “New Horizon 2007." a new
medium-term NYK Group management plan, Building on
the successes of “Forward 120,” our new three-year plan
aims to leverage our inlernational network covering ocean,
land, and air to become the worlds leading global logistics
and megacarrier group. “New Horizon 20077 comprises
three strategies and seis several performance 1argeis {or the
year ending March 31, 2008: revenues of ¥1.8 wrillion,
income before extraordinary items of ¥160 billion, and
after-tax return on invested capial (ROIC) of 8% or more.
Furthermore. by the fiscal year ending March 31, 2011, we

plan 1o achieve annual revenues of more than ¥2 1rillion.

Thougands of 17.% dollars

AND REsuLTS

(For the vears ended March 31, 2005

2004 2005

2005 and 2004} Plan Resuls

Plan Resuhs Plan* Resuhis

Revenues ¥1.360,000 Y1 606,098

¥1,300,000 7¥1,398.320

$11,333,333 514,955,753

Operating income plus interest

and dividend income (preiax) 38.000 = 166,543 92,000 > 07,193 816.667 ™ 1,550.822
Inceme before extraordinary items 77.500 —~ 154,803 70,000 74,663 645833 —  1441.5006
Net income — 71,326 — 34811 — 664,181
Investment 980,000 — 1,057,825 980,000 = 1,012,526 8,166,667 ™ 9850313

[nterest-bearing debt 641,000 = 630.054 676,000 7 654,481 5341667 ™ 58664974
Total shareholders’ equity 339,000 = 427,771 304,000 > 358,045 2,825,000 3983339
After-lax ROIC (%) 6.0 9.44 56— 5.76 — —

* This plan was based on an exchange rate of ¥120=US51.00,




The Next 120 Years

October 2005 marks our 120th year of establishment.
Over cur long history as a corporate group, NYK has
achieved many things. One major landmark in recent
years was the Plaza Accord, signed in 1985, I addition
to directly impacting our revenue base through rapid yen
appreciation, this agrecment marked a turning point from
an operational focus primarily on Japan, and we set our-
selves on the path of globalization. As 1 reflect on the fact
that a mere 20 years have passed since NYK truly embarked
on the road 1o globalization, | realize that the Company is
still quite young. As we pool the energies of the approxi-
mately 33,000 people around the world who make up the

NYK Group, we look forward to remaining a trustworthy

pariner selected by our customers. Through safe and
dependable menchakobi (transport). we will conribute to
the betterment of societies throughout the world,

1 thank vou all, and ask for your continued suppont.

June 2005

. g hann

Koji Miyahara

President




MEDIUM-TERM NYK GROUP MANAGEMENT PLAN

New Horizon 2007

THE NAME OF OUR NEW MANAGEMENT PLAN, “NeEw Horizon 2007,” INCORPORATES THE CONCEPT OF MOVING INTO NEW
FIELDS AND QUR RESOLVE TO PROGRESS STEADILY TOWARID TLIEM.

Building on the successes of “Forward 120, the NYK Group has now sel its sights on the goal of leveraging its
international network covering ocean, land. and air to become the worlds feading global logistics and megacarrier
group. Espousing these aims is “New Horizon 2007.7 the new medium-ternt NYK Group management plan. a three-
year plan that commences in the fiscal year ending in March 2006. With “accelerate implementation of strong growth
strategies and stabilize our corporate base™ as its theme, the plan defines three strategies: our expansion ol maritime
business, evedution towards a logistics integrator. and the enhancement of corporate fundamentals. The plan
defines our perfermance trgets for the year ending March 31, 2008, as revenues of ¥1 8 trillion, income
before extraordinary items of ¥160 billion, and afier-tax ROIC of 8% or more. Furthermore,

by the fiscal vear ending in March 2011, we plan to achieve TEVENUES of more than ¥2 trillion.

ROIC: Return on invested ,,-apim{, or (eperating income + inferest and dividend income) ¢ {otal sharcholders’ cquity + interest-bearing debt)

{Bifhons of yen)

200 New Millenninm
Dectararion Forward 120 New Horizon 2007
L e e Yo

S o e e - — .

l’Taqu i

L o l" - ’ ) -

¢ March 2003 March 2004 March 2005 March 2006 Muarch 2007 March 2008 are 3
(\\.lUJ[) {Actual) (Actual) (Pl.m) \i‘lmj ll’ an) Niﬂ[’l_h 201

{Tourget}

TReveues T T 24037 1398737 T le0el T Led0w 1iS000 0 18000
Operating income plus Revenues of mare than
interest und dividend income 74.3 97.2 1a6.5 165.0 175.0 175.0 ¥2 {I’IH] O]’]
B Income before - -
extaordinary ilems 50.3 747 154.8 150.0 160.0 600 .
- . Income before extrordinary
M Net income 14.3 34.8 71.3 G0 95.0 95.0

) o stems of more than
Atrer-tax ROLT of 3% or more

Prevequisites for lurecasts ¥ ]- 80 bllllon
Exchange rates per USS1 ¥122/5 Y114/% ¥107/% Y100/% ¥100/% Y100/$
Bunker oil prices

per metric wn $164!I~4T $174/MT  S194/MT  $200/MT  $200/MT  $200/MT




Thiee new management initiatives to accelerate implementation of strong growth
strategies and stabilize our corporate base

Strategy 1: Expansion oF MARITIME BUSINESS
Investing ¥1,380 billion on feet cxpansion from April 1, 2003, to March 31, 2011

To acconmmodate the expected continuous increase in on these assumptions, in the six years from April 1, 2005,
to March 31, 2011, the NYK Group will invest ¥1,380

billion to conduct fleet expansion to 880

miarine transport volumie on a global scale, the NYK Group

will proactively expand the size ol its fleet, centering on the March 20002201 L

bulk/energy resources transportation division. To support ships. from the current 660 ships. fnvestments
the robust levels of anzicipated growth centered on Brazil, e 2006 200K 31'-639 billian
Russia, India, and the PRC, shipping demand is likely to Invesiments T;‘Sbh‘ps
grow for raw materials such as crude oil, iron ore, coal, and Y750 billion

LNG. Furthermore, rising market populations are expected T‘;‘; Ships

to fuel demand for container products and vehicles. Based

Stues 1N FLEFT, Stops

AND INVESTMENTS 70 B ADDED
{CoNsoLIDATED) o
Ships in Fleat

Az ol Karch 31, | March 20062008 s o March 31, Mach 2009-2011 As ol Murh 3,
PN investmens New Ships o0 Investments New Ships 201Y
Bulk/Energy Resources Transportation Headquarters 400 ¥495 hillion 109 480 ¥430 billion 87 560
Globhal Logistics Headyuarters 260 ¥255 billion 49 300 ¥200 billion 33 320

Strategy 2,: EvoruTion Towsarps a LoGISTICS INTEGRATOR

Aiming to become a logistics integralor that meets complex and diverse customer needs with an imegrated array of
ocean, land, and air transpornt functions and infrastructure

Logistics systems have become increasingly complicated
and diverse, particularly in the automotive. electronics, and
retail industries, which used to demand simple transport
sysiems, such as from pon to port or door to door. The
NYK Groupr aims to meet these advanced cusiomer needs
by becoming a logistics integrator via an inernational
transport nerwork that begins with one of the worlds larg-
est fleets, covers sea, land, and air, and takes full advantage

of our expertise in each of these arcas.

Logistics imegrator business ={ :ranspor{;mon}, A

Strategy 3: ExHANCEMENT OF CORPORATE FUNDAMENTALS

REVENUE FORECASTS FOR
Locistics INTEGRATOR BusiNEss
(Years cading March 31}

2011
(Farget)

TN
2005 = 100

¢ Contamer { Logisiics™y i’(_’;lr carriery Y { Terminal %
i U division § | division ] N | division }
division !

Mecting stakeholder expectations

To meet customers’, shareholders’, and other stakeholders’
expectations, the NYK Group aims 1o [urther enhance its
corporate [undamentals that underpin the above-mentioned
strategies. NYK will primarily focus on the safe operations of
its ships, trucks, and planes—the most significant and funda-
mental management issue—and on environmentally respon-
sible business administrauon. Additionally, NYK will further
strengthen its technology and improve training and education

*MTI : Menohalobi Technology Institute

funections cenlering on the Monohakobi Technology Institute
(MT1). Furthermore, the NYK Group will proactively develop
a management system hased on informration technology and
provide personnel training for all Group companies around
the world. In April 2005, NYK established the Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Management Headquarters,
headed by Presidem Koji Miyahara, with the aim of further
strengthening and promoting CSR activities.




Locistics INTEGRATOR Busingss V [] ‘ ” | U n ‘I‘[] W ﬂ

IH[@I’VlﬁW — Tadamasa Ishida, Executive Vice President

Evolving as a logistics integrator while missing not a beat in our partnership with customers

The nvk Group’s goal ol becoming a logistics
imegrator is a step further down the course
set by our Global Logistics Headquarters.
Employing one of the world’s largest {leets,
trucks and warehouses, harbor [acilities, and
aireraft, our plan combines the hardware aspect
of our equipment covering sea, land, and air,
with our cargo management system and glohal
transportation network—software approaches.
The combination of these two courses will enable us 1o
meet increasingly diverse and sophisticated customer
needs more precisely, propelling the globally unique NYK

Group toward the goal of becoming a logisties integrator

Example 1. Transportation service for finished cars and car pans

characterized by us ability 10 carry out lo-
gistics operations over sea, land, and air.

The NYK Group already provides
advanced logistics services for rerailers and
manufacturers in the automaotive and elec-
troniecs industries. As a logistics integrator,
we will provide an expanded range of services.
In the auto industry, for example, in the past
our main role may have been to ship fin-
ished cars overseas. By operating specialized terminals
and adding o our services the domestiic land wansporna-
tion of {inished cars, we will be able 10 provide an

integrated range of services. For example, we will

Trucks trgnspost paris
fram cach paris faciory 1o
tha car factory

Parts procurement

) &)

Parls transport

IRE]
Cor fattary
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s

perform “milk runs,” wherein our trucks make the
rounds of various factories and perform predelivery

inspections. (3ce Example 1.}

We provide product distribution services for retail
customers. Until now, the smallest uni of transport has
been one shipping container. We are beginning to pro-
vide buyers’ consolidation services, involving a cross-
dock. Using this method involves the consolidation of
different products into a single corainer, Afier being
split into separate orders in a warehouse at the unload-
ing port, individual products are reconsolidated for
transshipment to customers’ shops and distribution cen-
lers. As this cross-dock and container system handles

product volumes more [lexibly, retailers can send their

Example 2 Rerail products disiribution service

shops only the specific number of products that sales
conditions justify at the time. By using an integrated
logistics service that can handle the shipping and deliv-
ery of any volume of products from the point of origin
through to the final destination, our customers have real-
ized a huge reduction in inveniories. {Sce Example 2.)
Given the robusiness of shipping demand in recemnt
years, many companies have stepped up their shipping-
related investments. However, historically shipping
demand has fluctuated substantially. The NYK Groups
approach is 1o ensure revenue stability by parinering
with customers, offering a seamless array of integrated
fogistics services. We will extend our integrated logistics
services by evolving as a logistics integrator, [usther
deepening our trust-based relationships with customers.

A Facrory B Fuctory L Frotory

e —
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Transport in separate containers

Containess shipped by sea
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WORLD-CLASS LOGISTICS INFRASTRUCTURE

The NYK Group provides a nearly complete range of ocean transpoit services,
including coniainer, bulk/energy, and car transport. We also offer a full complement of
related services, such as logistics, terminal-related operations, and cruises. This wide
spectrum of services enables us to meet diverse customer needs effectively.

The Group’ comainers under management total 506,447 TEUs
. (20-foot equivalent units), and our 107 container ships are capable of hauling 288280 TEUs.

@E% hé’ig“ﬁﬁzﬁéiéﬁmgn As a Grand A]li;‘::nce member, wc.form‘nne of
"R = & the worlds largest shipping route networks.

The NYK Groups O8 car carriers have 2 gross aperating tonnage of
1,423,658 Kt deadweight, making this
the world’s largest fleet in this category.

We operate 205 bulk carriers having

?f‘w‘i a gross operating tonnage ot ]_6,450 ,032 Kt deadweight,
§ making ours the second-largest fleet in the world,

These carriers support global economic activity by transporting iron ore, coal, and agricultural products.

The NYK Group operates a range of vessels to meet the needs of

its customiers worldwide in the forestry industry

This fleet includes 44 specialized wood chip carriers, as well as 22

open-hatch bulkers for wood pulp transport.

Numbering 27 vessels,
the NYK Groups. reeler carriers transport large volumes of fruit,

meal, sealood, and a host of other refrigerated and

frozen products throughout the world.




Numbering 35, the NYK Group’s crude oil tankers include
32 VLCCS that each carry more than 200,000 10nnes. B :
Making up one of the world’s largest VLCC ﬂeets

ithese vessels meet expanding global demand for energy transport.

Bonsming_]'clpan,S first LNG and LPG cariess.
the NYK Group’s lee: also includes chemical tankers that

haul such preducts as coal tar pitch and ammonia,

thereby meeting demand as it emerges.

The infrastructure that supports our integrated logistics operations
inctudes distribution centers at 202 10CatONS in 32 countries,
with 1.9 million square meters of floor space.

Serving as the inlormation system that links our sea, land, and air transportation network,

these facilities provide the supply chain management that supporis our integrated services.

As the worlds 6th largest terminal operator, the NYK Group operates lerminals
at 23 locations, accounting for annual container handling of

approximately 8 million TEUS (as of December 2003). We are playing

an ever-increasing role in global distribution, through sach efforts as developing finished-vehicle terminals.

The NYK Groups cruise ships have earned a place of prominence

in the worlds luxury cruise market. Serving the Japanese marker,
our flect boasts the Asuka, which ranked NUMbeT 1 as Cruiseship of the Year (Cruise magazine} {or
13 consecutive years. NYK Group company Crysial Cruises, Inc.,
also enjoys a reputation for having maintained the world’s most luxurious cruise ships

for 9 consecutive years (Condé¢ Nast Traveler and Travel + Leisure).
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Chart of Dperations

Global Logistics Headquarters Bulk/Energy Resowrces Transportation MHeadquarters
Ceataingt Car Transpon Log:stics Parts (Terminal-Belated Bulk Traesnart Encrgy Resources
Transpors Operationsi Trengpon
b4 ¢ * ? b $

Linkr TRADE  (OTHER SHIPPING

Shipping Lagistics Tenminal and Crutse Shipping-Related  Real Estate (nhers
Harbor Transport Services

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
(Consolidated fiscal years ended March 31, 2005, and 2004)

Miilions of yen Thousands of 11.5. dollars
2005 2004 2005
SEGMENT Income before [ncome before income befor
INFORMATION Operating  Extraordinary Operating Extraordinary Operating  Extraordinary
8Y Busingss Revenues Income liems Revenues Income Items Revenues Tncome liems
Shipping Y1.022,694 Y149903 YI46.140 ¥ 879865 ¥Q1,322 Y¥Y76875 $ 9,523,180 $1,395870 $1,360,830
Liner trade 452 4606 46,072 45,020 370252 25,500 21891 4213297 429016 419,220
Other shipping 570228 103,831 101,120 500,613 65822 54 984 5.309,883 260,854 941,610
Logistics 357.198 8,367 8,133 294,977 3,566 3.165 3.326,171 77911 73,752
Terminal and
harbar transport 109,010 4,147 398 102,357 605 (2,048} 1,015,082 38,611 3,708
Cruise 33,432 (3,628) (4.784) 20869 (5447 (6,603} 31314 (33,780) (44545}
Shipping-related services 44,744 112 564 42485 15 284 416,650 1,048 5,252
Real estate 12,956 2842 3,305 12,613 3,054 3367 120643 26,466 30779
Others 102,029 (332) 1,001 102,797 (1,238) (395) 950,083 (3.273) 9. 882
Eliminatien and
carporate (75,965) (16) (16) (66,643) 36 20 (707,370} (152 (152}
Total YEAO0A.098 ¥161,375 Y154.803 ¥1,308320 ¥91.933 ¥74,6063 $14955.753 $1,502,701 $1.441,506

Millions of yen Fiscar 2005
*15CA

SEGMENT

. . 2005 2004 Revenues 8y REGION
INFORMATION
By Reciox Operating Operating, Others 0.5%
(Reference) Revenues Income Revenucs Income -

., - , . ; Asia 47%
Japan Y1.262.763 Y153.013 ¥1,110,834 Y92 344 ——|
7.5

North America 190,651 (3.410) 172.822 (6.748) furope %
Europe 124,119 5.694 93,303 1812 Narth America
Asia 78,305 5,928 63,130 4,161
Others 8,699 (119 6,867 (14)

Eliminatien and
corporate (58,639) 269 (53,732) 378

Total ¥1.,6006.098 ¥1G1.375 ¥1.398,320 ¥91933







Iik

Oprarmg QOvervicw  1n the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, demand was lavorable on all rouses, including o
North America, Europe, Occania, Asia, and Central and South America. In response, we increased our nuunber of
rowtes 1¢ North America, Europe. and Oceania. We also began exclusive shipments and third-country transportation
on Central and South American and African routes during the vear. Subsidiary Tokyo Senpaku Kaisha, Lid., estab-
lished new routes and expanded its services in response to demand growth. NYK-Hinode Line. Lid.. has assanbled

a muitipurpose flect that includes vessels with heavy lifting capacity for handling hoth specialty and conventional

cargo atong its regular rowtes. In September 2004 we established NYK Line (Japan) Ltd. 1o market specialized ser-

vices in the domestic marker. As a vesult of a recovery in freight rates stemming from a favorable operating environ-
2

ment and cost-cutting cllorts, segmen) revenues climbed 19.3%. 1o ¥452.5 hillion. Operating income advanced

80.7%, to Y46.1 hillion, while income hefore extraordinary ftems increased 105.7%, to Y45.0




IltalNG

Intel"Vlew — Masamichi Morooka, Director

ansport. - =

76.9% | Liner Trade Rovenues
600

450

E
150
20 o 205

Aiming to expand fleet in response to container trade growth and offer

high-valuc-added services

Investing heavily to capitalize on
changing business climate
Favorable conditions in the Brazilian,
Russian, [ndian, and PRC economies, the
growth of new consumption areas, and
European imegration have created strong
goods flows. These factors are reshaping
the international division of procuction
and consumption. Comainer traffic volume
is rising, and most people expect this trend 10 continue.
The NYK Group maintains an ongomng fleet expan-
sion program to accommodate increasing container
transport demand, and has ordered several 8,100-TEU
vessels. We are also heefing up our infrastructure by
investing aggressively in terminals and our inland trans-
portation network. We can thus handle surging con-
winer demand and other changes in the transportation

climate.

Reinforcing ship route management to
stabilize and increase earnings

One of the NYK Groups greaiest strengths is
its membership in the Grand Alliance with
four other global shipping businesses 1 pro-
vide and share container vessels. We are tak-
ing advantage of the networks economies of
scale to boost handling volume, shipments,
and port coverage, and thereby enhance
customer convenlence and efficiency.

We are overseeing our targets through Corporate Goal
Management, which involves all employees. This initiative
aims to clarily individual responsibilities and streamline
and sirengthen organizational adminisiration. We will con-
tinue 1o expand our global network while reducing costs
to remain competitive. We also seek to provide more value-
added services to satisly diversilying customer needs while

creating an optimal fleet portfolio 1o lower marker risks.

The NYK Group’s container transport volunze has steadily increased
on all routes, including between Asia and the United States and Asia
and Furope.

NYK Group Transport Volumes NYK Group Transpart Volumes
on Asia-USA Routes on Asia—Europe Routes
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Oreraning OvERvIEW  In other shipping, markets were favorable for our car iransport and bull/energy businesses.

Segment revenues thus advanced 13.9%, 10 ¥570.2 billion. Operating income gained 57.7%. to Y103.8 billien, and

income before extraordinary items improved 83 9%, o Y1011 billion,
i p b

Car Transport Business  With worldwide cargo traffic
remaining solid, the NYK Group brought seven large new
ships into service while more efficiently allocating vessels.
We made significant progress in global finished-vehicle
logistics. For example, we concluded new conuracts for
finished-vehicle logistics in the PRC and elsewhere in Asia
and established and started operations at finished-vehicle
terminal joint ventures in Tianjin and Dalian to comple-
ment another in Shanghai.

Bl /EnErGY RESOURCES TRANSPORT Businiss  The
bulk transportation business again bolstered earnings and
income on higher PRC demand for iron ere and other
steelmaking materials. We concluded long-term charter
contracts with customers both inside and outside Japan

to help stabilize profits into the future. We also concluded
long-term charter agreements for wood chip carriers to
ensure stable earnings while aliocating other vessels more
efficiently. NYK Global Bulk Corperation, which operates
handysize bulkers, NYK Reefers Limited. which ships

refriperated cargo, Saga Shipholding (10M) Lid.. which has
a fiect of open-hatch bulkers, and Shinwa Kaiun Kaisha,
1id., which transports raw materials and bulk freight, all
benefited from lavorable operating conditions and greatly
improved their revenues and eamings.

In the tanker business. we concluded new long-term
contracis, started port calls of VLCCs to North America,
and otherwise strengthened overseas marketing We started
services with six double-hulled VLCCs and built one new
vessel while also building an Aframax crude oil tanker. Our
petroleum product tankers boosted earnings and income
on favorable demand, while we concluded an alliance with
two other Japanese and PRC shipping firms for coastal
chemical transportation in the PRC. We maintained steady
profits in LPG tankers through long-term charter agree-
ments for 10 vessels. We added two new LNG cariers,
increasing 10 32 our fleet of such vessels that we own
cither directly or indirecily through investments in

operating cormnpanies.
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We remain best positioned to satisfy customer needs as the

worlds largest car transporter

Handling complex finished-vehicle and
perts logistics in response to dispersed
automobile production

In recent yecars, Japanese automakers have
accelerated offshore produciion o better
serve local markets. Logistics has becomne
more complex, covering not only finished
cars but also parts. The NYK Greup expects
this trend 10 continue for the foreseeable
future, and has accordingly 1aken steps 1o comprehen-
sively satisfy the broad needs of 1is customers. We have
taken swift sieps 1o build coastal transpertation networks
in Europe, the PRC, and Southeast Asia, and are con-
structing and managing terminals while investing in
inland transporiation networks. For finished vehicles,
we also olfer such valuc-added predelivery services as

inspections, repair, and parts supply.

Drawing on Thai experience to meet new challenges
in the PRC and other emerging markets

The nyK Group earmned strong customer confidence by
building a finished-vehicle terminal in Thatland. The
Group was thus able 10 olfer 2 comprehensive service
package encompassing everything from transporting fin-
ished vehicles and parts by sea and land to offering pre-
delivery inspections and packaging parts. We are drawing
on that experience to meet new challenges in the PRC
and other emerging markets. To support customers in the
auto sector, we plan 1o invest in and operate finished-vehicle

terminals in Shanghai, Dalian, Tianjin, and Guangzhou.

Subsidiaries NYKCQOS Car Carrier Co., Lid.,
and Straits Auto Logistics Lid., handle trans-
portation of finished vehicles in the PRC and
Malaysia, and NYK Logistics (Philippines)
Lid. offers predelivery inspection and sup-
plies aulo parts. Joint venture Shanghai
NYKANJI Car Transportation Co., Ltd., pro-

vides inland transportation for finished cars.

Sapporting global auto industry growth
through the world's largest car carrier fleet and high-
quality transportation technologies
The nvk Group has drawn on its position as the
operator of the worlds largest car carrier fleet and high-
quality transportation technologies to supper the global
growth of the auto industry. We will build more high-
quality carriers that allow us to cover all vehicle categories,
including sport utility vehicles and trucks. We will satisfy
customer needs by expanding our fleet, maintaining and

improving quality, and delivering value-added services.

. _ , _ Worldwide Car Transport Yolume
W expect interregional vehicle
shipmenls to increase as —
‘ i

auromakers swiftly go global. a0
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Aiming to become the world’s leading global bulk and energy carrier

The bulk/energy transport business is a core of
the NYK Group. It maintains a world-class fleet
of 400 vessels and a global network, allowing
the Group to meet the diverse needs of customers.
In line with New Horizon 2007, a medium-
term ntanagement plan launched recentdy, the
bulk/energy iransport husiness aims 1o secure

more long-term contracts while capitalizing on

opportunities in highly promising areas. We
intend to grow not only in Japan but alse in such emerg-
ing markets as Brazil, Russia, India, and the PRC, as well
as in Southeast Asia and the Atlantic region. We will
ensure swift and steady progress by combining our fleet
with our marketing siruciure.
Buixk TransrorT Business: The NYK Group has played an
important role in Japans economic growth over many
vears through its bulk transportation of iron ore, coul,
wood chips, cement, and agricultural products. We have
earned a strong reputation {or efficiently employing a
[leet of diverse vessels in keeping with cargo characteris-
tics. our expertise and track record for safety, and our
global marketing network.

We are expanding our fleet 10 serve surging cargo

demand, particularly from the recently fast-growing PRC.

Ta this end, we established several overseas
companies under the NYK Bulkship brand.
In 2003, we established NYK Bulkship
(China} Limied 10 gather information and
cultivate our customer base, and in 2004
this company concluded a long-term contract
with Shanghai Baosieel Group Corporation.
In Europe and North America, we
signed iron ore haulage contracts with

Shipments and marlket conditions for dry bulk transporation remain
extremely favorable,

Dsy Bulk Shipping Velumes Dry Bulk Market
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major steelmakers ThyssenKrupp AG and Arcelor S.A.
We also concluded a contract for wood chips with Inter-
national Paper Company, one of the largest companies in
its field, as well as a contract with Drummond Group
Inc., of the United States, to haul coal from Colombia for
use in electric power generation. As these contracts atiest,
the strengthening of our marketing structure has staried
to generate contracts for krge projects overseas.

ENERGY TRANSPORT BUsINESS. The NYK Group plays a central
role in transporting oil, LNG, LPG, and other energy
sources.

We maintain a highly efficiert fleet of 35 oil tankers,
ncluding 32 very large crude carriers (VLCCs) exceeding
200,000 DWT. Double-hulled vessels account for 80% of
the fleet, reflecting efforts to switch to such ships ahead of
regulatory requirements. We have completed orders for all
double-hulled replacement VLCCs, and have ordered three
300.000-DWT double-hulied VLCCs to cater for the long-
term potential of the energy wanspen business. Once these
new vessels go inte service, our double-hulled VLCC fleet
witl have 33 vessels (excluding those on shon-termi chaner).

In July 2004, we concluded a three-year charter con-
tract with Hyundai Qil Refinery Co., Lid., Koreas largest
oil company. August saw the conclusion of a seven-year
contract with Exxon Mobil Corperation. and in October
we signed a three-year charter agreement with Chinaoil.

We plan to expand our LNG carrier fleet from the cur-
rent 32 vessels. to 60 by 2010 under the *New Horizon
20077 management plan. That is because during those
five years we expect global demand for 1LNG to expand
from 140 mmitlion tonnes to 270 million. Japan and South
Korea have been the prime LNG importers to date. but

demand is rising in North America, Europe, and India for

LNG as a clean encrgy source, and we look for global
consumption 10 keep increasing beyond 2010.

We are endeavoring 10 satisly the growing intemnational
market by drawing on our more than 20 years of experience
in LNG transportation to keep focusing on our domestic
operations while entering the international marketplace.

In Japan, for example, we concluded a supply con-
tract in December 2004 with Osaka Gas Co., Lud., [or two
NG carriers. We also conctuded a charter agreement with
Tokyo Electric Power Company, [ncorporated, 1o supply
energy [rom the Darwin LNG Project. We concluded
three contracts overscas in 2004, The [irst was with Gaz
de France in July 2004 1o share a new large, cutting-edge
NG carrier. The second was in August with Nigeria LNG
Limited for the long-term charter of two LNG carriers.
The third was in November with Sakhalin Energy Invest-
ment Company Lid. for the fong-term charter of two new
LNG carriers in the Sakhalin II Project. At the same time,
we also concluded a contract to establish a joint venture
with J5C Soveomflot, a Russian national shipping com-

pany, 1 operaie another two new carriers.

; ” LNG Demand Projections
W are ageressively expanding
aur fleet 10 meet major projected %
increases in global NG demand. -
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Oreraring Overvicw  In the vear under review. revenues {rom the logistics business increased 21.1%. to ¥357.2
hillion. Operating income advanced 134.6%. 10 Y8.4 billien, and income before extraordinary items rose 137.0%.
1o ¥8.1 hillion.

Based on Logistics Strategy Plan-1. a three-vear management plan launched during the terim 1o bolster earnings,
we el our initial rgets by expanding new businesses while pursuing activities to translorm our revenues and
expenses structure. Yusen Air & Sea Service Co., Lid., greatly improved revenues and earnings on the back of favor
able air cargo demand. We listed that company on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange in February 2005,

Other logisties areas performed below trget owing 1o congestion at terminals. A highlight of the vear was the

August 2004 start of comprehensive services ar NYK Logistics (Japan} Lad.

L

In[eMEW— Yoshiharu Murata, Director

Combining our hardware and software to satisfly all customer needs as an

essential partner

Making customers the top priority Our regionally focused services operate
The logistics business provides warc- under the same NYK Logistics brand, Our
housing and other assets as well as logis- worldwide management structure comprises
tics systems to meet cuslomer needs. | aperations overseeing North America, Europe,
believe that the quality of those systems China, Oceania, and Japan. We have 262
relates directly to our competitiveness. logistics centers in 32 countries and regions.
Our customers work in an increasingly Each center is part of an advanced informa-

competitive global environment. It is criti- tion system that links our sea, land, and air

cal for these companies to optimally locate transportation network that enables us to pro-

praduction and ensure that their supply chains and other
capabilities can properly serve new consumption areas.
The NYK Group aims to be their best solutions partner.
We have done much 1o meet the mest exacting
requiremenis of our customers. For example, we provide
high-value-added warehousing management and are rein-
forcing our distribution network, enabling us o offer
services that encompass domestic and international trans-
portation, consolidation, custems clearance, packaging,
and logistics information management, such as order and
inventory management. Furthermore, we employ state-of-
the-art information technologies that support schedule
management and the design of logistics management

Processes.

duce a unique array of proposals. In 200+, we established
a new sales office in Moscow 1o serve growing demand

in Eastern Europe.

We are expanding cur logistics bases, warehouses, and other
infrastructure to play central roles in cur comprehensive logistics
busingss.

NYK GROUP LOGISTICS CENTERS

. '{" /—f{"f e




. . 71.2% |\Logistics Revenues

\\
- e 400
I q i
) T - .
. YRR SN AME ] [ -
“Oe— =&]s=]c]N L
00
g
B .
1B:tpis of yenj




20

Terminat and Harbor

T — .
SRR — 5y
- - Transport Revenues

Teminal and Harbor Transport =37 1=

\\

]

-
~
d

OperanING OvErviEw  In the year under review, the terminal and harbor transport business

o

recovered despite a worker shortage at the Port of Los Angeles in July 2004 that caused ter- L
minal congestion. Carge mavements were generally favorable. The overall volumes handled —5  am e mE
{Butivns of yen)

in Japan. Asia, North America, and other arcas rose steadily. As a result, segment revenucs

increased 6.5%, to Y109.0 biltion, Operating income was up 5853.5%, 1o ¥4.1 hillion. and

income before extraordinary items grew 10 Y0.4 billion.

Harbor terminals central to logistics

integrator business

To ofter comprehensive logistics services, it is essential
for harbor terminals so operate efficiently as relays for sea
and land transport. The NYK Group is one of the world’s

few global terminal operators, with 23 facilities in Asia
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Streamlining harbor infrastructure to help deliver comprehensive logistics capabilities
g ‘ P S I

and Oceania, North America, and Europe. We are en-
deavoring to sireamline these operations. In Japan, we
have facilities in Tokyo, Kobe, and Yokoharna. Overseas.
we directly manage terminals in Los Angeles and Oakland
and Kaohsiung in Taiwan. We have also invested in con-
tainer terminals in Nagoya, Laem Chabang in Thailand,

and Sydney in Australia.

Expanding coverage to serve market growth

Ceres Terminals, Incorporated, which we acquired in
2002, has improved its operations and enhanced our abil-
ity to serve the east coasts of the United States and
Canada, as well as Mexico’ coastal region. Ceres Paragon
Terminals B.V in Europe has mmade steady progress. and is
preparing to handle port calls on new routes. In addition,
we are looking into establishing terminal operations in
the PRC to serve growing demand.
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OPERATING OVERVIEW I the year under review, competition in the United States intensi-

fied in the high-end cruise market, served by our three Civstal Juxury cruise ships. ‘ | |
2003 G4

At the same time. the Japanesc market recovered {rom the impact of the war in fraq. s

20 Ceuise Revenues
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Segmicnl revenues consequently increased 11.9%, to ¥33.4 billion. The operating Bt of yuot

loss was ¥3.6 hillion, and the loss before extraordinary jtems was Y4.8 billion, both

improvements from the preceding term.

Enhancing our presence in the American {uxury
cruise market

A,merican subsidiary Crystal Cruises, Inc., maintains
three large luxury ships. The first is Crystal Harmony,
which started operations in 1990 and has a total tonnage
of 48,621 Kt (gt} and a passenger capacity of 940. The
second is Crystal Symphony, which began cruises in 1995
This ship has a total tonnage of 51,044 Kt (gt) and a pas-
senger capacily of 940, The third is Crystal Serenity, which
began cruises around the world in July 2003. It has a to-
tal tonnage of 68,870 Kt (gt) and can carry 1,080 passen-
gers. The U.S. cruise market serves around 8 million
people annually and should continue to expand as baby

boomers retire.

Asuka 1 to holster competitiveness and stabilize
earnings

In Japan, NYK Cruises Co., Ltd., operates Asuka, the
largest Japanese-registered luxury vessel. I began global

and domestic cruises in 1991 and has a total tonnage of

Aiming (o become a preeminent and profitable global luxury cruise operator

28,856 Kt (gt) and a passenger capacity of 392. This ship
serves the Japanese market, where we expect demand for
luxury cruising to expand in the vears ahead. In spring
2006, we plan 1o take advantage of growing Japanese de-
mand by replacing the Asuka with the Crystal Harmony,

which we will rename Asuka I

The NYK Group’s passenger ships are highly regarded.
Gilohal Cruise Population 2005 Ranking, according to 21

Complete Guide to Cruising
and Cruise Ships
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ioping-elated Services

Oprrating Oviervicw  In this segmient, revenues grew 5.3%, 1o Y44.7 billion. Operating
income improved 639.7%. 10 ¥0.1 billion, while income before extraordinary items was up
98.6%, o YO.6 billion. Contributing to these favorable results were NYK Trading Corpora-
tion and shipping-agency subsidiary United Maritime Co., 1td., which we formed through
mergers in October 2003, thereby concentrating management resources and harnessing syn-

ergtes, resuliing in heightened competitiveness. Tughoat operations alse remained favorable,

Our shipping-related operations encompass domestic and overseas shipping-agency businesses,
tughoat operations, and the wholesaling of shipping machinery and equipment. These play an

essential role in our core shipping and cruise operations.

Heal Estate

Oerraning Overview  Tlis business area focuses on office leasing. and we locused on siable
management in the year under review as urban redevelopment transformed the marker, Seg-
ment revenues thas increased 2.7%, w Y13.0 billion. Operating income declined 6.9%, how-
ever, 10 ¥2.8 billion, while income before extraordinary items was down ¥3.3 hillion. or

1.8%.

The nyK Group owns teal estate throughout Japan. We rent and maintain mainly office and
commercial buildings in Tokyo, Yokohama, Nagoya, Kobe, and other cities.

iR

OprrATING OVERVIEW  Segment revenues were down 0.7%, 0 Y102.0 billion. We posted an
operating loss of ¥0.4 billion, and income before extraordinary items was ¥1.1 hillion.

Although Nippoen Cargo Airlines Co.. Ltd., posted higher revenues, earnings dectined as
a resalt of surging luel prices. Nippon Airship Corporation hegan its advertising husiness

using rigid airships in February 2005,

The others segment includes oil wholesaling, air freight services, information processing, and

travel services.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) INITIATIVES

As a global logistics provider covering sea, land. and air
the NYK Group provides an essential service 1o society
and creates value by transporting (the goods that is cus-
tomers convert oy valuabte products. Through our global
legistics operations, we play an important role in social
development, and with this privilege come important
social obligations, The NYK Group aims to help people
throughowt the world by contributing so their tfestyles,
cultures, and economies, and in fulfilling this mission we
recognize our dutics #s a corporate citizen,
Uinderstanding these responsibilities, in April 2005
we established the CSR Management Headguarters,
which is led by President Koji Mivahara, This organiza-
tion aims 1o ensure that the NYK Group mainmains the
level of trust it has been granted by shareholders, cus-

tomers, and all other stakeholders.

Safe Vessel Operations

The safe operation of our fleet is a matter of top manage-
meat priority for the NYK Group. One of the most {funda-
mental parts of vur corporate mission is 1o transporl the
goods with which customers have entrusted us Lo their
destinations safely and on schedute. All the people in the
NYK Group who are involved in the safe operation of our
fleet work 1o continually improve safety under the maxim
“Sail on Safery.” We perform ongoing land- and sea-based
training activities 1o ensure the thnely dissermination of
safety information and appropriate emergency responses.
Through NAV90QO, the standard we adopted in 1998, we
foster cooperation between shipowners and ship manage-
ment companies to ensure operational safety and environ-
mental preservation. Since we began using NAVOQQQ, we
have expanded its coverage of flect and corporate audits 1o
include 1,800 vessels and 140 companies. 5o far, this stan-

dard has resulted in 12,000 operational improvemenis.

Environmental Preservation

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, we formal-
ized our Environmental Management Vision and defined
environmental management strategies 1o help us realize
this vision. By employing appropriate management mea-
sures, we seck 10 minimize the environmental risk of our
operalions and ensute that our environmental managemer
system is consistent throughout the world. Through global
cooperation threughout the NYK Group, we are creating

a system that promotes environmental activities at every

location where we operate, Currently, 69 companies and
P ¥ p

offices bear the [SO 1400) environmental management
certification, Each of these sites has defined environmental
targets and cmploys specific environmental actions. TFur-
thermore, by employing environmentatly {riendly ship
designs and engines, we minimize fuel consumption and
optimize the efliciency of land-based container transport.
We also endeavor to decrease the burden we place on the

environment through modal shifis.

Global Human Resource Development

The nvk Group employs approximately 33,000 people
throughout the world who perform a broad range of activi-
lies. We have created a workplace environment in which
all employees can fully apply their capabilities. Through
our Global Human Resources (GHR) project, we are accel-
erating hwnan resource development on a worldwide
scale. This project aims to increase the enjoyment of all
employees throughout the Group and provide them with

major opportunities for growth and additional responsibility.

Social Contribution Activities

On October 1, 2004, we cstablished the Corporate Citi- 23
zenship Office within our Corperale Communications

Group o {urther our initiatives. Such social contributions

have included donating our services 1o ship bicycles o

developing countries and dispatching persennel to a non-

profit organization (NPQO) dedicated 10 the eradication of

“land mines. We will continue to proactively expand our

social contribution activities.

In the aftermath of the 2004 earthquakes that shook
Niigata, Japan, and Sumatra, Indonesia, the NYK Group
launched an internal fundraising campaign and donated
funds to support organizations within the NYK Group.
Following the earthquake in Sumatra, we shipped relief
supplies from around the world 10 the affected region.
Such activities allow us 1o contribute 1o society by

donating our services in our core area ol expertise.

{tems shipped by the NYK CGroup to aid Sumatra
carthgquale victims
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE INITIATIVES

To ensure that it maintains the trust of its sharcholders,
customers, contractors, regional communities, and other
stakeholders, NYK strives to create and maintain 2 man-
agement structure that provides appropriate manage-

ment transparency and efliciency.

Organization of Internal Systems

Nvyk employs an auditing system. Our Boand of Corporate
Auditors incorporates {our members, including rwo outside cor-
porate auditors, and oversees the activities of Company directors.
Full-time auditors are located in the Auditing Depanment.

Qur Board of Directors, which comprises 17 members,
makes decisions involving legal matiers, sets major manage-
ment policies and sirategies, and oversees the execution of
business activities. We also employ a 38-member Committee
of Directors, which includes some members of the Board of
Directors, This commitiee [ocuses on the execution of busi-
ness matters, based on Board resolutions and decisions. Five
members of the Committee of Direclors are vutside mem-
bers of the commitiee who are employed as directors of
Group companies. These members help 1ake ownership
ol and implemeni Group management strategies. In April
2003, a non-Japanese oulside member was appointed to this
comuittee {or the first time.

The Executive Committec for Strategic Management,
which deliberales matters of major importance {rom the
viewpoint of management strategy, comprises members at
the senior managing director level or above and determines
direction for the Board of Directors. We have also estab-
lished the NYK Group Conference of Presidents to
sirengthen Groupwide management and (ransparency.

This internal structure is designed to provide clear lines

of authority and responsibility for business operations, allow

GENIRAL MELTING OF SHARCHOLDERS

Assign, remove members Assign., reprove members

Boaro o DIRLC10RS Boranp or CORPORATT ALDITORS

(Scts management policy, * 4 members (including rwo
oversees operational execution) -——  outside corporaie awditors)
17 directors Audit

i FINANCIAL AUDITOR

Supervise, assign,
remave members

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FOR Nyvk Grour CONFERFNCE OF

STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT Prrsinrats
{Deliberate matters of ——3- (Deliberates group management
TELjOT imponance) ralegies)

*Seniar putnaging dircctors
or above, 7 members

Y . L
Covmi rree o DiRceTonrs
* 38 members

*7 senior managing diwcciors or
higher and group company presidents

fast and appropriate decision making, and increase manage-

ment transparency and efficiency

Internal Controt System

INYKS internal conrol system includes the organizations

described below. The Intemal Audit Deparument, which serves

as the primary audit body for all companies in the NYK Group,

was established 1o provide periodic checks and evaluations of

Group businesses in an efficient and effective manner.

{1) Compliance with Laws and Articles of Association
The business environment in which NYK operates is charac-
terized by tumuttuous change. and we are expanding our
operations rapidly on a global scale. To elucidate our carpo-
rate stance clearly to people both inside and outside the
Group, in March 2003 we established the NYK Group busi-
ness stalement. We incorporated this statement in1o the NYK
Line Business Credo, which describes codes of conduct thm
all directars and employees must follow. These guidelines
form the basis for the thorough enforcement of compliance.
Qur internal struetare consists of a compliance committee, a
chief compliance officer (CCO}, and a compliance chamber.
We have also set up an office for consuliation w encourage
reporting {rem within the Group o prevent even minor
problems or potential issues from escaping vur notice,
Furthermere, we conduct the A Manth of General Compli-
ance Review Campaign every year to keep all our direciors
and employees fully conscious of the need for compliance
and 1o encourage them to take specific measures 10 that end.

(2) Risk Management
Supervisory departments within the Company respond
io the various types of operating risks that cur business
involves. and various controls have been enacted to ensure
compliance with inernal regulations. To further ensure
appropriate risk management, in April 2005 the Company
created the Risk Management Department 1o periadically
measure the Companys overall risk management activities.
With this department at the core. we have created a
Companywide internal control system that meets the need
{or an integrated approach toward ongeing internal control,
with controls in place for various 1ypes of risk.

(3) Financial Reporting o Ensure Trustworthiness and Comply
with Disclosure Requirements
In its financial reporning, NYK applies corporate accounting
standards that are generally accepted o be fair and
appropriate and seeks 1o maintain its own trustworthiness.
We realize the imporniance of the timely disclosure of corpo-
rate information with documentation that conforms to Secu-
ritics Exchange Law, the Japancse Commercial Code, and
other legal stipulations. Funhermore, we comply with the
regulations set forth by securities exchanges and provide
sharcholders, investors, and other stakeholders with a range




of information through cur investor relations activities and
on our website. To gather disclosure information related 10
our statements of accounts, we have designated a reporting
division that gathers disclosure information from each
department without allowing leaks, and have setin place

a checking sysiem.

In April 2005, we inaugurated the Information Disclo-
sure Committee, chaired by President Koji Miyahara. Afier
reviewing disclosure control and compliance. this committee
will create a sysiem 10 evaluate the Company’s conformance

in periodic financial securities reports.

Executive Compensation
Execmive compensation paid to Company directors and
auditors during the year under review is indicated below.
This compensation includes director bonuses and executive
retirement benelits. (Amounts of less than one million yen
have been rounded off.)

Audizers

(ol which, 1o outside

Duecters vorporgle auduors) Toual

Executive

compensaticn  ¥812 million  ¥59 million ¥872 million

(¥13 million)
Auditor Compensation
Compensalion paid 1o auditors during the year under re-
view is indicaled below. (Amounts ol less than one million
yen have been rounded ofi.)
1) Campensation for activities stipulated by Section 1, Anicle
¥53 million
2) Compensation other than that described above: ¥ 6 million

2 of Cenified Public Accoumtants Law:

Corporate Audits, Audit Organizations, and Financial Audits .

INYK has established the Intermal Auditing Department,
comprising 12 members, which performs audits in accor-
dance with our Imermal Audit Resolutions. We have also cre-
ated overseas group administiration offices (GAOs) in five
locations—the United Siates, Europe, South Asia, East Asiza,
and Oceania—to perform internal audits. Each GAO reports
to the Internal Auditing Department. Al four of our audi-
tors, including two outside corporate audiors, follow the
audit procedures set by the Board of Corporate Auditors.
These auditors participate in Board of Directors meetings
and other important meetings, listen to the status of duties
executed by directors, the Internal Auditing Department,
and other persennel, and peruse documents involving
important decisions, One member of the Internal Auditing,
Department supports the auditor in his audit activities. Cor-
porate auditors ensure the impartiality of financial auditors.
and corporate and financial auditors work 1ogether to ensure
seamless communications and a mutual exchange of infor-

mation and strive to improve auditing efficiency.

Corporate auditors convene each month for a meeting of
the Board of Corporate Auditors to review audit results and
share other information. These auditors also meet each
month with the Internal Auditing Department, and meel
every three months with the linancial auditors, thereby pro-
moting communication among the three audit groups.

NYIKs financial audits are conducted by certified public
accountanis Masaki Ayukawa, Koichiro Kimura, and
Taisuya Arai, all of whom are with the firm ChuoAoyama
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Assisting these three are 18 ather
certified public accountans, 16 accounting assistants, and
four athers. Audits are performed according to generally
accepted standards for audit fairness and appropriateness.

Human, Capital, or Other Relationships or Interests
Existing between NYK and lis Outside Directors and
Outside Corporate Auditors

Keisuke Kitajima, an vutside corporate auditor for NYK,

is a director of the Daiwa Securities Group Ine. Tsuyoshi
Miyazaki, also an owside corporate auditor, is a sentor
advisor for Mitsubishi Logistics Corporation. NYK has busi-
ness relationships with both Daiwa Securities and Mitsubishi
Logistics, but no personal interests exist hetween NYK and

these ouiside corporate auditors individually.

Company Activities during the Past Year to Improve
Corporate Governance

AsNvK is expanding its opetations on a global scale, its
compliance initiatives must extend to its overseas companies
as well as.domestic operations. In the past year, we have
conducted compliance iraining at seven overseas locations,
providing instruction and exiensively strengthening compli-
ance al our overseas companies and branches. Furthermore,
in July 2005 we will implement an e-learning sysiem that
provides an environiment enabling all employees ar all
locations to study on their own at any time.

I addition 10 the internal audit activities that NYK con-
ducts in Japan, we disiributed questionnaires designed o
allow overseas companies in the NYK Group to conduct self-
evatuations of their internal compliance. These evaluations
were complemented with on-site audits.

Following the General Meeting of Shareholders, we pro-
vided an opportunity for shareholders to speak directly and
informally with Company directors. At this time, NYKS direc-
tors provided sharcholders with explanations of managenient
performance and reporis on current conditions. In the fuiure,
we will continually persevere to manage in a way that is both

fair and transparent.
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FLEET: NYK GROUP COMPANIES

{Years ended March 31)

Gross Operating Tonnage

Vessels Kt (dwt)
2004 2005 2004 2005
Owned 227 238 16,426,082 18,331,455
Chartered 360 408 18,806,702 19,325,965
Total 617 646 35,232,784 37,657,420
Nate: Figures include vessels that are owned, jointly awned, or chartered by NYK and its consolidated subsidiarics.
(As of March 31, 200%)
Type of vessel Owned Chanered Toaal
Container Ships Vessels 25 112 137
Kt {dwr) 913,684 3,481,805 4,395,485
Bulk Carriers (Capesize} Vessels 43 32 75
Kt {(dwt) 6,028,154 4,549.173 10.577.327
Bulk Carriers {Panamax and Handysize) Vessels 34 108 k42
Kt (dwt) 1,452,627 4,084.201 0,436,828
Waood Chip Carriers Vessels 12 32 44
Ki (dwi) 537,636 1,509,277 2,046,913
Car Carriers Vessels 36 62 98
K1 {dw1) 548,682 937,043 1,485,725
Reefer Carriers Vessels 12 15 27
Kt (dwt} 118,766 133,652 252,718
Tankers Vessels 34 27 61
Kt (dwr) 7,037,744 3,514,742 10,552,486
LNG Carriers Vessels 22 0 22
Kt {dwn) 1,548,410 0 1,548,410
Cruise Ships Vessels 3 1 4
Kt {dwt) 14.797 8,160 22957
Others Vessels 17 19 30
Kt {dwt} 130,955 207,612 338.567
Total Vessels 238 408 646
Kt {(dwt) 18,331,455 19,325,965 37,657,420







’ CONSOLIDATED SIX-YEAR SUMMARY

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidied Subsidiaries

Millions of yen

005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

For the years ended March 31:
Revenues ¥1,606,008 ¥1,308320 ¥1,249,242 ¥1,142934 ¥1,133906 Y1,102,434
Cosls and expenses 1,283,769 1,158,352 1,037,373 945 950 018,646 912,016
Selling, general and administrative

expenses 160,954 148,035 142,746 131,425 127,620 119,548
Operating income 161,375 91,933 69,123 65,559 87,640 70,870
Orher income (expenses), net (6,572) (17,270} (18,779) (15.451) (16,341) (31,721)
Income before extraotdinary items 154,803 74,663 50,344 50,108 71,299 39,149
Extraordinary gains (losses), net (27.590) (13,127) (17,697 (18,399) (13,495) (3,093)
Income belore income taxes and

minority interesis 127213 61,536 32,647 31,709 57,804 34,056
Income taxes—current 51,366 33,798 153,350 13,159 26,591 19.658
Income taxes—deferred 580 9512) (93) (337) (5,134) (1,818)
Minorily interests 3.941 2,439 3,087 1,348 785 421
Net income 71,326 34,811 14,263 17,539 35,562 15,795
As of March 31:
Towal current assets Y39950F Y 370,674 ¥ 350,228 ¥ 313917 Y 322779 Y 312430
Total current liahilities 477 865 425,754 370,522 387,322 378,955 409,849
Tonal vessels, property and equipment,

28 nei of accumulated depreciation 701,157 652,405 651,160 685712 750,325 708719
Total assels 1476227 1,376,664 1,287,170 1,339,923 1,381,594 1,419920
Long-term debt 464,196 491,233 548,926 547,657 659,358 683,127
Total shareholders’ equity 427,771 358,045 288,363 320,096 278,748 259,004
Retained earnings 203,774 146,756 122272 116,350 113,684 90,634

Yen
Per share of common stock {"?2;
Net income—primary ¥ 58.12 ¥ 28.27 Y 11.48 ¥ 1423 ¥ 2888 Y 12.97
—fully diluted — — — 14.23 28.21 12.49
Sharcholders’ equity 350.10 292.88 235.81 260.80 225.36 212.59
Dividends applicable 1o the year 18.00 10.00 7.50 7.50 7.50 6.00

Notes: (1) “Per sharc of common stock” is calculaied based on the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during each fiscal year:

(2) In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, the Company applicd the Accounting Standards Related to Accounting for Nel Income per Share
{Corporate Accounting Standard No. 2) and Guidclines for Applying Accounting Standards Related to Net Income per Share (Guideline
Ne. 4 for Applying Corporate Accounting Standards}) to calculate shareholders” equity per share and primary and fully diluted nct income
per share. The impact of thesc changes was minimal.

{3) Although vessel expenses, long-term charter charges wlated to vessels other than container ships used o be recognized in the year in which
they incurred, Jrom the year ended March 31, 2003, the Company changed its accounting such that in principle they are now recognized
tipon completion of arrival back at the port of origin, The impact of these changes is shown in notes 3.N to the consolidated financial statements.

(4} In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, the Company applied early o its consolidated finaneial accounts the Accounting Standards
Related 1o Impairment Loss on Fixed Assets (Opinion Paper on the Establishment of Accounting Standaeds for Impairment Loss on Fixed
Assets, released by the Financial Services Agency Business Accounting Council on August 8, 2002) and Guidelines for Applving Accounting
Standards for Impairment Loss on Fixed Assets (Guideline No. 6 for Applving Corporate Accounting Standands, Octaber 31, 2003). as
well as the Partial Revision to Standards for Accounting for Retirement Benefits (Carporate Accounting Standards Guideline No. 3, March
16, 2005) and Guidelines for Applying Partial Revision to Standards for Accounting for Retirement Benefits (Guideline No, 7 for Applying
Corporate Acceunting Standards, March 16, 2005). The Company also revised its method of accounting for costs rclated to ship officers.
The impact of these changes is shown in note 3.N to the consolidated financial statements.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, the NYK Group
posted consolidated revenues of ¥1,606.1 billion, operat-
ing income of Y161 .4 billion, income belore extraordinary
items of ¥154.8 billion, and net income ol ¥71.3 billion.
Each of these results was a record high.

Consolidated revenues rose 14.9%, reflecting higher
freight volumes and rates in the shipping segment, com-
bined with higher revenues from logistics operations.
Owing to successful cosi-cutting efforts, the Company was
able 1o limit the inereases in costs and expenscs, as well as

selling, general and administrative expenses, As a result,

Analysis of Capital Sources and Liquidity

operating income surged 75.5%, and the ratio of operating
income to revenues was 10.0%, up 3.4 percentage points
from the 6.6% recorded in the preceding term. Owing to
such faciors as lower interest expenses and an increase in
investment income based on the equity method of account-
ing, other income, net improved, and income before extra-
ordinary items jumped 107.3%. Even alter the early
adoption of impairment accounting lor a ¥20.6 billion
extraordinaty loss, net income rose 104.9%. As a result,
the Companys after-tax return on invested capital (ROIC)
rose sharply, growing from 5.76% 10 9.44%.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Total assets were Y1,476.2 billion, an increase of ¥99.6 bil-
liont from the previous year-end. Primary faciors included
a ¥21.8 billion rise in accounts receivables-trade, owing to
expanded sales, as well as a Y51.0 billion increase in our
investment in shipbuilding—the total increase in the ves-
sels and construction in progress categories. Higher stock
prices prompted a ¥[2.7 billion increase in investments in
securities.

Tonal liabilities grew ¥24.6 billion, to ¥1,019.5 billion.
Owing to the Companys ongoing cfforts to reduce debt
and the effecis of yen appreciation, interest-bearing debt
dropped ¥24.4 billion. However, current liabilities expanded
¥32.1 hillion, auribwable 10 higher accounts payable and
advance receipts.

Total sharcholders’ equity increased ¥69.7 billion, 1o
¥427.8 billion, owing to a rise in retained eamings. The
debt-to-equity ratio was 1.5 times, a 0.3-point improve-

ment from one year earlier.
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Operating Income and
Operating Margin
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Cas FLows

At the end of the {iscal year, net cash provided by operat-
ing activities was ¥173.5 billion, up Y64.1 billion, owing
mainly to a rise in income before income taxes and minor-
ity interests. Net cash used in investing activities was
¥135.1 billion, up ¥47.0 billion. Factors included higher
expenditures for tangible and intangible [ixed assets, and
lower gains on proceeds [rom the sale of investment securi-
ties and the sale of [ixed assets. Net cash used in financing
aclivities was ¥41.4 billion, up ¥6.5 billion, partly owing
10 higher dividend payments.

As a result of these factors, net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents was ¥0.2 billion. However, owing 1o an
increase in cash and cash equivalents due to change in
consolidation scope, cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year amounted 1o Y65.0 billion, up ¥1.4 billion from

the previous vear-end.

Net Income and
Return on Equity {ROE}
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FunpinGg REQUIREMENTS

Most of the working capiial that the NYK Group requires is
for Group ship wansportation and cruise operations. These
funds are primarily used 1o caver cargo expense, fuel, har-
bor and other running expenses, as well as the cost of
crews, vessel repairs and chartering. In addition, the Group
incurs labor and other administrative expenses in its logis-
tics and terminal operations. Each business has labor,
information processing and general and administrative
expenses. The Group also invests in ships and in logistics
and terminal facilities. Capital expenditure for the con-
solidated fiscal year was ¥193.5 billion.

Financiai Pouicies
To maintain and expand its business activities, the NYK
Group sources funds internally as well as through bank
loans and the issuance of bonds and commercial paper.
When funding capital purchases in the core shipping
business, we aim to secure long-term loans. We base bor-
rowing levels on the projected freight revenues and lease
pruceeds from the operations of each ship during the
periods of these loans. Similarly, for logistics and terminal
facilities we secure stable funding in line with fulure cash
flows. As of March 31, 2003, long-term loans stood a1
¥357.3 billion. These borrowings were denominated in
yen, .S, dollars, euros and in other currencies, with a mix

of floating and fixed interest rates.

Interest-Bearing Debt Total Shereheldors’ Equity
and Equity Ratio
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We fund working capital with loans due within one
year and commercial paper. No commercial paper issues
were outstanding at the close of the period under review.
The Group also uses the capital markets as needed to
secure funds for its facilities and working capital through
bond issues. During the consulidated fiscal year, NYK
floated a ¥30 billion domestic bond issue, bringing total
bonds outstanding to ¥131.8 billion as of March 31, 2005,

The Company has received ratings from two agencies
in Japan and two overseas. As of June 28, 2003, our bonds
were tated AA by Japan Credit Rating Agency, Lid., AA- by
Rating and Invesiment Information, Inc., A3 by Moody’s
Investors Service, and BBB by Standard and Poors.

Management sirives to minimize interest costs in
choosing funding methods, At the same time, it obtains
funding so it can lease some ships and thereby lower
interest-bearing debt. The Group has instituted a cash
management system to draw on internal funds.

The NYK Group remains well positioned o generate
suflicient cash flows on the strength of its healthy operat-
ing resulis and financial position. The Group has the
leeway Lo issue ¥50.0 billion in commercial paper, as well
as a commitment line of ¥20.0 billion from financial insti-
tutions. In management’s view, therefore, the NYK Group
is able 1o ubtain sullicient working capital and facilities

funding 1o support growth.

Debt-to-Equity Ratic Cash Flows
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Significant Accounting Policies and Assumgtions

The Company prepares its consolidated financial state-
ments in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and practices in Japan. The production of such
statements necessarily entails managemernt decisions on
accounting policies adopied and assumptions that affect
amounts and disclosures in the balance sheets and siate-
ments of income, Management refers 10 historical data
in making rational decisions based on these estimates,
however, actual results may differ materially.

The following significant accounting policies greatly
influence management’s key cstimates in preducing the

consolidaied financial statcments.

REVENUE AND INCOME RECOGNITION

The NYK Group recognizes revenues and earnings for
container ships proponionately with the movement of
shipments. Recogaition for other vessels is mainly upon
completion of each voyage. For other business areas, man-
agement uses rational standards based on when services

are provided.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The Group maintains this allewance to prepare for the
risks of losses arising from defaulis on accounts receivable
and other claims, Where the financial positions of debtors
deteriorate such that collection becomes doubiful, manage-

ment may augment the allowance or book losses.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS

The NYK Group holds shares in financial instivwions and
business partners, In principle, we state securities with
available market: quotes at market value. Other securities
without available market quotes are stated using the loss-
reduction method, where management determines that
price declines are not temporary in light of assumpiions
about the financial pesition of the company or institution

in which the invesiments are heid.

AMORTIZATION OF DEPRECIABLE ASSETS
The NYK Group holds tangible and intangible depreciable
assets. Management amortizes these asseis based on

rational meihods over estimated useful lives, The resultant
unamortized book value does not necessarily represent the

[air value of these assels.

RETIREMENT AND SEVERANCE BeEngriTs

The NYK Group covers employee retirement and severance
liabilities and cosis based on actuarial assumptions. These
assumnptions encompass such factors as discount rates,
rates of salary increases and long-term rates of return on
pension assets. The NYK Group reviews its actuarial
assumptions annually. Where necessary, it adjusts the
asswmptions in light of the current market environment.
Where actual resulis differ from assumptions or where
management changes its assumptions, the effects are
cumulative and influence future recognition. In general,

thereflore, acturial diferences are recognized over a future

period through periodic amonization of unrecognized items.

DeFerRRED TAX AsSSETS

The NYK Group makes rational estimates of future taxable
income in evaluating the recoverability of deferred 1ax
assets. Since recoverability depends on the income
assumptions above, il management decides that the deferred
tax assets are likely to be partly or wholly unrecoverable it
may reduce the deferred tax assets for the period con-

cerned by recognizing the valuation allowances.

The risks and uncertainties facing the NYK Group inciude
significant changes in economic conditions in the markets
in which it docs business, in the shipping market, and in
foreign exchange, interest rates and fuel prices, as well as
from maritime acciders involving the Group's ships, and
social turmoil arising {tom wars, terrorism and the cutbreak
of diseases, such as SARS. These risks and uncertainties
could affect the Group’s business activities, management
results and financiat position. The risks and uncertainties
that could affect the Group are not limited 10 those

mentioned above.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries

(As of March 31, 2005 and 2004) Thousands of
1.5, dollars
Millions of yen (Note 2)
ASSETS 2005 2004 2005
Current assels:
Cash and ume deposits ¥ 66,740 Y 65373 $ 621472
Marketable securities (Note 5} 1.640 3.023 15,270
Notes and accounts receivable—trade (Note 12) 189,656 167 869 1,766,053
Allowance {or doubiful accounts (1,656) (1,800) {15,418)
Inventories (Note 6) 22,711 19,850 211,486
Deferred 1ax assets (Note 10} 3,950 7,977 36,782
Other curreni assels 116,260 108,382 1,084 447
Total currem assels 399,501 370,674 3,720,092
Investments and long-term receivables:
Investments in securities (Noie 5) 227.211 214 501 2,115,904
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and alfiliates 57,593 51,027 497 563
Long-term loans receivable 8,184 10,309 76.208
Deferred 1ax assets {(Nowe 10) 476 2,805 4,429
Other long-term receivables 50,844 48,230 512,042
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2,335) {2,000} (23,603)
Total investments and long-term receivables 341,773 324 872 3.182 543
Vessels, property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
(Notes 7, 8 and 9):
Vessels 453,365 445,384 4,221 667
Buildings and structures 69,266 68,397 644,993
Equipment and fixtures 8,353 7.012 77,785
Land 59346 66,263 552,620
Construction in progress 82,074 39,035 764,259
Others 28,753 26,314 267,749
Total vessels, property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 701,157 652,405 6,529.073
Intangible assets 25413 21.387 236,639
Excess of investment cost over underlying net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries, net of accumulated amortization 8,262 7,189 76,930
Other assets 121 137 1,129
Total assels ¥1,476,227 Y1.376,664 $13,746,406

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Thousands of
2.5, dollars

Millions of ven (Nowe 7)
LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTERESTS AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 2005 2004 2005
Current liabilities:
Short-term bank loans ¥ 52073 ¥ 61,071 $ 484,900
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 93 113,785 102,177 1,059,548
Notes and accounts payable 152,418 136,675 1,419,297
Income 1axes payable 37,184 26,062 346,255
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 10} 1.795 1,352 16,718
Cinployees’ bonuses accrued 8,048 6,981 74,938
Other current liabilities 112,562 31,436 1,048,156
Total current liabilities 477.865 425,754 4449812
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt (Note 9} 464,190 491,233 4322526
Deferred tax liahilities (Note 10) 22327 23,092 207,906
Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits (Note 16) 19,174 19,226 178,544
Reserve for directors’ retirement benefits 2,917 2514 27.162
Reserve for periodic dry docking of vessels 3,152 4,574 29355
Other long-term liabilities 29 908 28,557 278,491
Tonal long-term liabilities 541,674 569,196 5,043,984
Total liabiliiics 1,019,539 994,950 9,493,796
Minority interests 28917 23,669 269.271
Sharcholders’ equity:
Cominon stock,
2005—Auhorized 2,983,550,000 shares,
outstanding 1,230,188,073 shares
2004—Authorized 2,983,550,000 shares,
outstanding 1,230,188,073 shares 88,531 88,531 524,388
Additional paid-in capital (Note 11} 94,421 94,421 879,235
Retained earnings (Note 11) 203,774 146,756 1897516
Net unrealized holding gain (loss) on cother securities 55.336 44,333 515.279
Foreign cuttency translation adjustments (10,819) (12,900} (100,748)
Sub total 431,243 361,141 4,015.670
Treasury stock
2005—9,319,451 shares
2004—8,632,117 shares (3.472) (3,096) (32,331
Tonal shareholders’ equiry 427,771 358,045 3,983,339
Commitments and contingent liabilities {Note 12)
Total liabilities, minority interests and shareholders’ equity ¥1,476,227 Y1,376,6064 $13,746,406
Yen U.S. dollars

Sharcholders’ equity per share ¥350.10 ¥202.88 $3.26
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries
(For the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003)

Thousands of

US. dollars
Millions of yen (Nore 2)
2005 2004 2003 2003
Revenues ¥1,606,008  ¥1,398,320 ¥1,249 242 $14,955.753
Cosis and expenses 1,283,769 1,158,352 1,037,373 11,954,275
Gross profit 322,329 239,968 211,869 3,001,478
Selling, general and administrative expenses 160,954 148,035 142,746 1,498,777
Operating income 161375 91,933 69,123 1,502,701
Other income {expenses):
Interest and dividend income 5.168 5,264 5,407 48,121
Imerest expenses (16,632) (18.098) (20,146) (154,871}
Others, net 4,892 (4.436) (4,040) 45,555
Other income {expenses), net (6,572) (7.270) (18,779) (61,195}
Income before extraordinary items 154 803 74,663 50.344 1,441 506
Extraordinary items:
Gain (Loss) on sale of vessels, property, equipment
and investment securities, net 1,791 (1,636) 802 16,675
Impairment loss on fixed assets (Note 4) {20,607} — — (191 .885)
Qthers, net (8.774) {11,491) (18,499) {81,705)
Extraordinary gains (losses), net (27,590) {13,127) (17,697) (256,915)
Income before income taxes and minority interests 127.213 61,536 32,647 1,184,391
Income Laxes—current 51,366 33,798 15,350 478,312
Income taxes—delerred S80 (9.512) (93) 5.400
Minority interests 3,941 2,439 3,097 36,698
Net income ¥ 71326 Y 34811 Y 14,293 5 664,181
U.5. dollars
Yen {Note 2)
Per share of common stock:
Net income—primary ¥58.12 ¥Y28.27 ¥11.48 $0.54
Net income—fully diluted — — — —
Dividends applicable 1o the year 18.00 10.00 7.50 017

The uccompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries

(For the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003}

Millions of yen

Shares of Nev unrealized Foreign
common Addinonal holdin rurrency
suwk Common paid-in Retained gain (loss)on trenslatien Treasury
(Thousands) stock vapital earmings other securities  adjustments stock
Balance as of March 31, 2002 1,227,504 ¥83,531 Y03,342  ¥116,350 Y26,003 ¥ (4,156) ¥ (64)
Increase in additional paid-in capital due 1o
exchange offering 2,684 — 1,079 — — — —
Effect Irom changes of consolidated subsidiaries, net — — —_ 1,071 — — —
Retirement of 1reasury stock — — — (1) — — —
Cash dividends — — — (9.213) — - —
Directors’ bonuses o — — (228) — — —
Net income for the year — — -— 14,293 — — —
Net unrealized hotding loss on other securities — — — — (30,273) — —
Cost of treasury stock (purchased) sold — — — — — — {2890}
Foreign currency Lranskation adjustmerts for the year — — — — — (3,571 —
Balance as of March 31, 2003 1,230,188 88,531 94 421 122,272 (+4,180) (9.727) {2,954)
Effect from changes of consolidated subsidiaries, net — — — 614 — — —
Cash dividends — — — {10.692) — — —_
Directors” bonuses — — — (249} — — —
Net income for the year — — — 34811 — —
Net unrealized holding gain on other securities — — — — 48,513 — —
Cost of 1zeasury stock (purchased) sold — — — — — (142}
Fuoreign currency sranshuion adjustments for the year — — — — — (3,173) —
Balance as of March 31,2004 1,230,188 88,531 94,421 146,756 44,333 (12,900)  (3,096)
Effect from changes ol consolidated subsidiaries, net — — — 594 — — —
Effect from changes of uffiliates accounted for
under the equity method, net — — — 269 — — —
Gain on revaluation of fixed asseis of subsidiaries
according to generafly accepled accounting
principles in the United Kingdom — — — 461 — — —
Adjusunent for micimum pension lLabilities of
subsidiaries according to generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States — — — 14 — — -—
Decrease on unrealized profivioss on derivatives
heid by subsidiaries according 10 generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States — — — (83) — — —
Cash dividends — — — (15,268) — — —_—
Directors' bonuses — — — (295) — — -—
Net income for the year — — — 71,326 — — —
Net unrealized holding gain on other securities — — — — 11,003 — —
Cost of treasury stock (purchased) sold — — — - — — (376)
Foreign cuntency wanslaion adjustnients lor the year —_ — — — -— 2,081 —
Balance as of March 31, 2003 1.230,183  Y¥88.531 Yo1.421 YIO3 774 ¥55.336  Y(10,819) Y(3.472)
Thousands of U.5, dollars (Note 2)
Shares of Net unrealized Foreign
common Addutional holding currency
stock Common paid-in Retaned gain {loss} on ranslmion Treasury
{Thousands} s1ock capital earnings other secunities  adjustments stack
Balance as of March 31, 2004 1,230,188 $824.388 $879,235 $£1366.569 $412.823 $(120,125) $(28,832)
Effect from changes of consoliduted subsidiaries, net — — — 5,5H} — — —
Etfect from changes of affiliates accounted for
under the equity method, net — — -— 2,501 — — —
Gain on revaluation of fixed assets of subsidiaries
according o generally accepied accounting
principles in the United Kingdom — o — 4,291 — — —
Adjustment for minimum pension liabiliies of
subsidiaries according to generally accepted
accounting principles in the United Suates — — — 132 —— — —
Decrease on unrealized profivloss on derivatives
held by subsidiaries according to generally
accepted accounting principles in the United Staies - — — (777) — — —
Cash dividends — — —  (142,176) — — —
Directors’ bonuses — — — (2.745) — — —
Net income [or the year — — — 664,181 — — —
Net unrcalized bolding gain on other sccurities e — — — 102 456 — —
Cost of treasury stock (purchased) sold — — — — — —  (3,499)
Foreign currency transluion adjustments for the year — — — — — 19,376 —
Balance as of March 31, 2005 1,230,188 S824,388  8879,235 $1,897510  $515.279 $(100.749) ${32.331)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial starements.
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: CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidmied Subsidiaries

(For the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003) Thousands of
Us. dollars -+
Millions of ven (Note 2)
005 3004 2003 2005

Cash lows [rom operating activities:
Income belere income taxes and minority interests ¥ 127,213 Y 61,5336 ¥ 320647 $ 1,184.591

Adjustments to reconcile income before inceme taxes and minority interests
0 net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amenization 66,814 65,689 66,111 622,167
Impairment loss on fixed assets } 20,607 — — 191,885
Loss (guin) on sale and disposal of tangible and imangible fixed assets, nel 2,003 2.285 565 18,656
Loss (gain) on sale of markewable and invesiment securities, net (2.909) (679  (1.391) (27,090)
Loss (gain) on devaluation of marketable and invesiment securities 1,656 304 7.351] 15,419
Equity in earnings of uncensolidated subsidiaries and affiliates (2,598) (1.624) {1,472) (24,194)
Imerest and dividend income (5.168) (5.264) (3.407) (48,121}
Interest expenses 16,632 18,008 20,140 154,871
Loss (gain) on foreign currency exchange 444 2,015 1,631 4,138
Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts receivable (16,183) (17,773) (i343%) (150,697)
Decrease {increase) in inventorics (2.878) 324 {4,762 {26.800)
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable 10,930 10259 2,647 101,779
Chhers, net 10,006 10,079 5.002 93,171
Subiotal 226,569 145,249 109,633 2,109,775
Interest and dividends received 7.145 6,137 6,550 66,538
Interest paid (16,887) (18.577) (21,54 (157,251)
Payments for income taxes (41319  {21,449) (6,517} (384.760)
Net cash provided hy operaling activitics 175,508 111360 88,126 1,634,302
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of marketable securities (1,321) (3.765) (9,881) (12,302)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 2.580 13.671 15,262 24,022
36 Expenditures for tangible and intangible fixed asscis (193,569) (143,353) (89,123)  (1,802.490}
Proceeds {rom sale of tangible and intangible fixed assets 59,987 67,459 54,267 558,395
Purchase of investment securities (6,239) (8.036) (11,496} (58,097)
Praceeds from sale of investment securities 10,436 8,334 6,981 57,182
Payments for acquisition of newly consolidated subsidiaries — (210 (19,666) —
Procecds from acquisition of newly consolidaied subsidiaries 4+ — — 411
Payments for sale of invesiments in subsidiaries resulting in change of
scape of consolidation — 4N — —
Lending of loans receivable 21,217y (27.074) (6,131 {197,572}
Collection of loins receivable 11,381 4,542 686 105,981
Others, net 2.831 2.390 4,618 26,548
Net cash used in investing activities (135067} (88.089) (54.483) (1,257.722)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease} in shon-term bank loans (7.973} 26,502 (R,979) (74.243)
Praceeds from long-term loans 123,083 168,628 147,288 1,146,134
Repayments of long-term loans (151,400) {197 346) {195,764) {1,409.813)
Proceeds {rom bonds 29,819 — 77,597 277.671
Repayments of bonds (20,200 (21,000 (40411) (188.,009)
Proceeds from stock issue for minority shareholders 2,037 — — 18.970
Pracecds from sale of weasury stock o 8 — —
Purchase of treasury siock (376) {173} (2,800 (3.499)
Cash dividends paid by the Company (15,268) (10,601} (9.212) (142,176)
Cash dividends paid by subsidiaries to minerity shareholders (1,080) (803) (629) (10,063)
(hhers, net (17 13 10 {156}
Net cash used in financing aciivities (41.375) (348062 (32,990) (385,274)
Effect ol exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 744 (10,106) (8.121) 6,921
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (190)  (21.697) {7,468} (1.773)
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning of the year (3,632 79,804 81.901 592,532
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents duc to change in consolidation scope 1,586 5.525 5,371 14,769
Cash and cash cquivalents at end of the year Y 65028 Y 63,632 Y 79804 S 605,528

The accompanying rotes are an integral purt of the consolidated financial statements.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nippon Yusen Kahushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries
(Far the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003)

1. Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial Statements:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are an
English translation of the consolidated financial statements
made public for filing with the Direction of Kanto Local
Finance Bureau and the stock exchanges in Japan. The
originat consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and practices in Japan.

2. United States Dollar Amounts:

In the English translation, certain account reclassifica-
tions are made and additional information is provided in
order 1o present the consvlidated financial siatements in a
format familiar to international readers. The resulis of these
reclassifications do not affect the {inancial position or
resulis of operations and cash flows of the consolidated
companies as reported in the original consolidated

{inancial statements.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are
stated in Japanese ven, and the dollar amounts represent
the arithmetical results of translating yen to United States
dollars using the exchange rate prevailing at March 31,
2005, which was ¥107.39 10 U5$1.00. The statemenis in

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

such dollar amounts are solely for the convenience of read-
ers outside Japan and are not intended 10 imply that the
ven amounts have been or could be readily convened, real-
ized or settled in dollars at that rate, or any other rates, of

exchange.

A. CoONSQLIDATION POLICIES

(1

~—

The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha (the
“Company”™} and its 495, 425 and 375 consolidated
subsidiaries at March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

During the consolidamed [iscal year ended March 31,
2005, the Company newly consolidated NYK Logistics
{(Japan) Co.. Lid., and other 48 companies which were
newly incorporated. In addition, the Company newly
consolidaled Hinode Module Transport Co., Ltd., and
other 43 companices, after determining that they would
have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, following the acquisition of
additional shares in Asahi Transport Co., Ltd., this com-
pany has now been included as a conselidated subsid-
iary. Owing to the liquidation, Kinkai Yusen Logisiics
Co., Lid., and other 22 companies have been excluded
from consolidation. In addition, owing 1o the merger
with GST Corporation, NYK Logistics (ETA) Inc. has
been excluded from consolidation.

{2) Invesuments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and
affiliates are carried at either cost or equity, depending
on the extent of influence and materiality, Companies
accounted for by the equity method numbered 30
affiliared companies as of March 31, 2005, 30 affiliated
companies as of March 31, 2004, and 2 nonconsclidated
subsidiaries and 29 affilisted companies as of March
31, 2003.

During the consolidated fiscal year ended March
31, 2005, 1the Company newly included TIPS Co., Ltd.,
as a company accounted for by the equity method, alter
determining that this company would have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Owing
10 the new treatment ol Asahi Transport Co., Lid., asa
consolidated subsidiary, this company is no longer
accounted for by the equity method.

(3) Any material diflerence between the cost of an invest-
ment in a subsidiary and the ameunt of underlying
equity in net assets of the subsidiary upon inclusion
in the consolidation, unless specifically identified and
reclassified to the applicable accounts from which the
value originates, is treated as an asset or a liabiliy, as
the case may be, and amortized over a period of 510 20
years on a straight-line basis.

(4) The Company adopts the “full fair value method” so
that the full portion ol the assets and liabilities of the
consolidated subsidiaries is marked to fair value as of

the acquisition of comurol.

B. AccounTING PERIOD

The accounting period of the Company begins on Aprii 1
and ends on March 31 of the following year.

As of March 31, 2005, the accounts of 131 and | con-
solidated subsidiaries were closcd o1 December 31 and
February 28, respectively. Necessary adjustiments on con-
solidation during the peried from each of the closing dates
to March 31 are made as 1o these companies.
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C. VALUATION OF ASSETS

Securities held to maturity are valued at their amortized
cost, determined principally by the straight-line method

of amortization. Other securities with market quotes are
principally stated at the average of markel value for the

last month of the liscal year. (All appraisal differenials are
capitalized and costs of sales are generally computed by the
moving average method.} Other securities without market
quotes are generally stated ai cost, with cost being deter-
mined by the moving average method. Derivatives are
valued at market quotation. Inventories are gencrally stated
at the lower of cost or market quotation, with cost deter-

mined by principally the moving average methad.

D. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

{1) Tangible assets are depreciated as follows:
Vessels and buildings are depreciated generally by the
straight-line method. Other tangible fixed assets are
depreciated generally by the declining-balance method
based on the Japanese Corporation Tax Law

(2) Imangible assets are amortized as {ollows:
Computer soltware is amortized by the straight-line
method based principally on the length of period it can
be used internally (five years). Other intangible assets
are amortized by the straight-line method based on the

Japanese Corporation Tax Law.

E. CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST EXPENSES

Interest expenses are generally charged 1o income as they
are incurred. However, interest expenses incurred in the
consiruction of certain assets, particularly projecis for
vessels, are capitalized and included in the costs of assets
when a construction period is subsiantially long and the
amount of inierest incurred in such a period is significanily

large.

F ALLowance FOrR DOUBTFUL ACCQUNTS

To prepare for the risk of possible losses arising, owing to
the nonpayment ol accounts receivable, loans and other
claims, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries set
aside a general reserve based on actual default experiences.
For speciflic claims where collection is in doubt, the possi-
bility for recovery is considered individually and the
amoumnt considered uncoliectible 15 set aside in the reserve.

G. Provisions

(1) Employees bonuses accrued is provided for the portion
refevant 1o the current year of the amount estimated for
payment of the bonuses in the future.

{2) Reserve [or periodic dry-docking of vessels is provided
[or based on the estimated amount of expenditure for
periodic dry-docking in the future.

H. RETIREMENT AND SEVERANCE BENEFITS

Reserve for Employees’ Retirement Benelits:
To provide for employees’ retirement benefits, this
reserve is set aside based on the estimated actuarial
present value of the Company’s and its consolidaied
subsidiaries’ retirement henefit obligation and the
estimated fair value of pension assets at the end of the
fiscal year.
Unrecognized net actuarial diflerences are mainly amor-
tized from the immediately following vear on a straight-
line basis over a termn that does not exceed the average
remaining service period of employees who are expected

to receive benelits under the plans (8 years).

Reserve for Directors’ Retirement Benefits:
1o provide for the paymemn of retirement benefits o
directors and corporate auditors, in accordance with
internal policies, the Company and consolidated sub-
sidiaries set aside such reserves calculated as the esti-
mated amount which would be payable if ali directors
and corporate audilors were to retire at the balance
sheer date.

I. Frewgut ReveNui aND ExpeEnsE RECOGNITION

Freight revenues and expenses are recognized by twao dif-
ferent methods depending on types of cargo transportation.
(1) Transpertation by container ships:
Revenues and expenses arising from ocean transpona-
tion of conlainers are recognized proportionately as
shipments move.

{2} Transportation by vessels other than container ships:
Revenues and expenses from transportation by vessels
other than contatner ships are recognized upon
completion of unloading cargoes at the final destination

pert.

J. Accounting FORr LEAsES

Finance leases other than those which are deemed (o




transfer the ownership of the leased assels to lessees are
accounted f{or by the methed similar 10 that applicable to
ordinary operating leases in accordance with accounting
principles and practices generally accepted in Japan.

K. METHOD OF ACCOUNTING FOR MATERIAL
HepGgr TRANSACTIONS

For derivative {inancial instruments used 1o offset the risks
of assets and liabilities due to luctuations in interest rates,
foreign currency exchange rates and cash flow, the
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries apply hedge
accounting. In addition, hedge accounting is alse applied
10 derivative financial instruments used to mitigate the
risks of price fluctuations in luel procurement, etc. For the
hedge accounting, the Company and its consolidated sub-
sidiaries adopt a deferred hedge method that requires the
Company o mark the derivative financial instruments,
effective as hedges, 1o market, and 10 defer the valuation
loss/gain. For currency swap contracts and forward foreign
exchange contracts that meet the required condition under
the accounting standard, the Company and iis consoli-
dated subsidiaries translate hedged foreign currency assets
and liabilities at the rate of these contracis. In addition, for
interest rate swap contracts and inlerest rate cap conlracts
that meet specified conditions under the accounting stan-
dard, the related interest differentials paid or received
under the contracts are included in the interest income/
expenses of the hedged financial assets and liabilities. In
addition, the following hedging methods for various risks
are utilized: interest rate swaps for the risk of interest rate
fluctuations related 1o borrowings, bonds, eic.; currency
swap contracts, forward foreign exchange contracts for the
foreign exchange risk associated with monetary asscts and
liabilities, expected transactions, etc.; and swaps for the
risk of price fluctuaiions in fuel oil, ete. Semi-annually, the
Company and its consolidated subsidiaties evaluate the
effectiveness of hedging methods, except interest rate swaps
and interest rate caps that meet specilied conditions under
the accounting standard, by analyzing the ratios of the cumul-
ative amoumnt of market {luctuation or cash flow among the

hedging financial instruments and the hedged items.

L. FinancIAL STATEMENTS OF OVERSEAS SUBSIDIARIES
Overseas consolidated subsidiaries employ generally
accepted accounting principles prevailing in their respec-
tive countries of domicile..

M. Cast anDp CasH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalenis in the consolidated statements
of cash llows are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits
that are able 10 be withdrawn on demand and short-term
investments with eriginal maturities of three months or

less that are exposed to minor value {luctuation risk.

N. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Although vessel expenses and long-term charter
charges related to vessels other than comainer ships
used 10 be recognized in the year in which they
incurred, from the vear ended March 31, 2003, the
Company changed its accounting such that in principle
they are now recognized upon completion of arrival
back at the port of origin,

In order to perform more precise profit calculations
for cach business, the Company reviewed accounting
for revenues, earnings and expenses ceniering on the
trainper/specialized carricr enterprise business, which
has expanded in line with a Group reorganization in
recent years. In order to belter match revenue, earnings
and expenses by voyage and route, the Company has
changed its completion method ol accounting for
freight revenue and expense recognition of transporia-
tion by vessels other than container ships to include
vessel expenses and long-term charier charges in the
calculation in addition 1o the freight revenue, carge
charges and short-term charter. As a result of this
change. sales based upon the new method were ¥1,428
millien lower, while the cost of sales was ¥8,383 mil-
lion lower. As a result, operating income, ordinary
income and income before income taxes and minority
interests cach increased by ¥6,955 million. The impacis
on segment information are shown in the relevant paris
of the notes 1o the consolidated financial stalements.

(2) On August 9, 2002, the Business Accounting Council
in Japan issued “Accounting Standard for Impairmens
of Fixed Assets” and on Qctober 31, 2003, the Account-
ing Standards Board of Japan issued “Implementation
Guidance for Accounting Standard for Impairment of
Fixed Assets”. These standards require that fixed assels
be reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicale that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impair-
ment loss shall be recognized in the income statement

39




40

by reducing the carrying amount of impaired assels or
a group of assets to the recoverable amount to be mea-
sured as the higher of net selling price or usage value.
‘These standards shall be effective from the fiscal year
beginning April 1, 2005. However, an carlier adoption is
permitted for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2004,
The Company has adopted these standards in the {iscal
year ended March 31, 2005. As a result of the adoption
of these standards. income before taxes and minority
interests decreased ¥20,607 million. The impacts on
segment information are shown in the relevant parts

of the notes 1o the consolidated financial statements.
Accumulated impairment loss is deducted from net
hook value of each asset in accordance with consoli-
dated financial statemenis reporting standard.

(3) In line with the pubtic announcement of Partial Revi-
sion 10 Standards for Accounting for Retirement Ben-
efits (Corporale Accounting Standards Guideline No. 3,
March 16, 2005) and Guidelines for Applying Partial
Revision 1o Standards for Accounting for Retirernent
Benelits (Guideline No. 7 for Applying Corporate
Accounting Standards, March 16, 2003), the Company
clected 1o and did apply these standards 10 its consoli-
dated [inancial statements for the year ended March 31,
2005. As a result. operating income, income before

extraordinary itemns and income before incore taxes

4. Impairment Losses:

and minority interests increased Y582 million. The
impacts on segment information are shown in the
relevant parts of the notes 1o the conselidated {inancial
staiements.

(4} Until the year ended March 31. 2004, the Company
has recorded certain costs relaled 1o foreign vessel
officers, eic., as an ather expense. From the year ended
March 31, 2005, however, the Company has begun
accounting, for this as a cost of sales, in the “costs and
expenses” calegory. In recent years, the composition of
crews has changed, with the inclusion of foreign crew
members becorming more prevalent. In addition, the
dispatch to land-bascd operations of ocean support
personnel has increased. For these reasons, the Com-
pany has begun accounting for these crew-related
expenses in the same manner as a cost of sales, whereas
in the past they were recorded as an other expense.
Compared with the previous method, the new method
of accounting for these costs caused a ¥1,898 million
increase in costs and expenses and a cotresponding
¥1,898 million decrease in operating income. This
change does not affect income before extraordinary
items or income belore income taxes and minority
interests. The effects on individual business segments

are noted in those segments,

The asscssment of whether there is an impainment of fixed

asscts is made for cach group of assets, which is determined

as individual asset for rental real estate and idle assets and

based on the grouping for managerial accounting and invest-

ment decision-making purposes for other operasing assets.
For assel groups whose operating profitability has

decline in real estate value and rental market and the poor
performance of assets, the Company has determined thar

the likelihood of recouping the book value of these assels

is unlikely. The Company has therelore marked the assets

down 10 the net recoverable value and posted the impair-

ment loss of Y20,607 niillion, which is comprised of the

worsened subsiantially owing to such factors as ongoing following.
Millions of yen

Location Use Caregory Inzpairment loss
Bahamas. other Cruise Cruise, other ¥ 7947
Yokohama, Kanagawa Underutidized Land and structures 5,785
Kobe, Hyogo Logistics warchouse Land and structures 2,148
Cta-ku, Tokyo Logistics warchouse Structure, other 1,770
Others Primarily remial propeny and underutilized real estate Land and structures, other 2,957
Total ¥20,607




BREAKDOWN OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Bahamas, other ¥7 947 million {Of which, ¥5,992 million for ships, ¥1.955 million [er cthers)

Yokohama, Kanagawa ¥5.785 million (Of which, ¥5.471 million for land, ¥314 million for structures, ¥0 million {or cihers)

Kaobe, Hyogo ¥2.148 million (Of which, ¥815 million for land, ¥1,333 million for others)

Cua-ku, Tokyo ¥1,770 million (Of which, ¥1,185 millien for structures, Y585 wmillion for others)

Others ¥2 957 million {Of which, Y103 million for ships, ¥2,308 million for land, ¥370 million for structures,
¥176 million for others)

The net recoverable value is determined as the higher of assessors, and the usage value is calculated as future cash

the net sales value and the usage value. The net sales value flow discounted mosily by 4.00%.

is based on appraisat provided by professional real estate

5. Marketable Securities and Investments in Securities:

{1) Marketable securities and invesiments in securities held o maturity with market value as of March 31, 2005 and 2004

are summarized as {ollows:

Millions of yen Thousands of U.5. dollars
2003 2004 2003
Book  Marker Unrealized Book  Matket Unrealized  Book  Marker Unsealized
value value  pain (loss)  value value  pain (loss}  value value  gain {loss)
Securities for which the market value exceeds
the boak value:
Government bonds, ete Y450 Y493 Y13 ¥ 594 ¥ 617 Y23 $4.464 $4588 $124
Corporate bends 400 412 12 620 627 7 3,724 3836 112
GCthers 71 71 0 — — —_— 666 669 3
Sub towal 951 976 25 1214 1244 30 8,85+ 9,093 239
Securities for which the market value is equal
10 or less than the book value:
Government bonds, etc. 10 1y (0) — — — 23 93 (0)
Corporate bonds — — — — — — — — —
Others —_ — — 81 8] = — — — —_
Sub 1otal 10 10 () 81 81 — 93 93 (V)]

Towal ¥Yo61 Y986 Y 25 Y1.295 ¥1,325  ¥30  $8947 $9,186  $239
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(2) Marketable securities and investments in securities classilied as oiher securities with market

and 2004 are sutnmarized as [ollows:
Millions of ven

value as of March 31, 2003

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2005 2004 2005
Acquisition Book Acquisilion Book Acquisition Book
Cusls value Dilference Costs value Dillerence Costs value Difference
Securities for which
the book value exceeds
the acquisition costs:
Corporate shares Y114.545 Y202,673 Y88,128  ¥i22580 YIG3,719 ¥71,139 $1.066,624 $1887,263 $820,639
Government bonds, cte. _ —_ — — —_ —_ — —_ —
Corporate bonds 559 560 1 800 920 30 5.209 5,212 3
Others 1 2 1 22 23 6 6 23 17
Sub total 115,103 203,235 88,130 123,492 194,667 71,175 1,071,839 1,892498 B20.659
Securities for which
the beok value is equal
e ot less than
the acquisition costs:
Corporate shares 7.970 7,547 (423) 53,641 +.644 (997) 74,217 70,273 (3.944)
Government bonds, ele. 59 59 — — — —_ 545 545 —
Corporate bonds — — — 249 249 — — — —_
QOthers 76 74 ) pal 20 1 713 601 (22)
Sub total 8,105 7.680 (425} 5911 4913 {998) 75,475 71.509 {3.966)
Total ¥123.210 ¥210915 Y¥87,705  ¥129,403 ¥199.380 ¥70,177 $1.147314 $1,964.007 $816.693

6. Inventories:

Inventories as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Miliions of yen L5 dollars

2005 2004 2005
Products and goods Y 3,125 ¥ 4,134 $ 29,100
Real estate for sale 1 272 11
Fuel and supplies 17,278 14.005 160,887
Others 2,307 [,439 21,488
Toral ¥22.711 ¥19.850 $211 486

7. Accumuiated Depreciation:

As of March 31, 20035 and 2004, accumulated depreciation amounted 10 ¥649,269 million ($6,045,902 thousand), and
¥Y621,362 million, respectively.

8. Deferred Capital Gains:

In accordance with corporation tax regulations and the insurance claims, were deducted from the cost of proper-

opinion of the Jupanese Institute of Cenified Public ties acquired in replacement as of March 31, 2005 and
Accoumants, deferred capital gains of ¥4,230 million

(539,385 thousand), and ¥4,041 million, mainly from

2004, respectively.




9. Long-Term Debt:

Long-term debt as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, consisted of the following;

Thousands of

Millions ol yen U5 dallars
2005 2004 2005

Loans from banks and other financial institutions, with a weighted-average

interest tate of 2.19 and 2.11 percent at March 31, 2005 and 2004.

due from 2005 1o 2040 Y446,173 Y 471,412 $4,154.696
2.35 percent notes, due on January 7, 2005 — 10,000 —
L.70 percent notes. due on June 9, 2043 o — —
1.925 percent notes, due on june 9, 2004 — 10.000 —_
2.1 percent notes, due on June 9, 2005 203.000 20,000 186,237
G47 percent notes, due on Octoher 18, 2007 20,000 20.000 186,237
0.81 percent notes, due on October 16, 2009 20,000 20,000 186,237
0.52 percent notes, due on Fehruary 20, 2000 15,000 15,000 130,678
1.01 percent notes. due on Februiary 21, 2013 13,000 15,000 139 678
1.58 percemt notes, due on fune 9, 2014 20,000 — 186.237
2.36 percem notes, due on June 7, 2024 10,000 — 93,119
187 percent mongage bonds, due on March 10, 2005 — 200 —
Floating/fixed rate euro medium-ierm notes, due from 2005 to 2008 11,808 11,798 109,955
Subtotal 577981 593,410 3.382.074
Less portion due within one year (FE3,785) (102.177) (1.059,548) 43
Total Y 464,196 ¥ 451,233 $ 4322526

As of March 31, 2003, the lollowing assets were pledged as collateral for centain short-term loans, long-term debt and

others: et book salue

Thousands of

Millions of yen .S, dollars

Vessels Y108,613 $1,011,386
EEiidings and structures L0445 97,261
Langl 10,412 96,953
aneslmcnls in securities 11,942 111,203
Others 17.444 162,439
Total Y158,856 $1,479,242

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term loans from banks and other financial institutions, bonds and notes as of

March 31. 2005, were as follows:

Years ending March 31,

Millions of yen

Thousands af
S, dollars

2007 ¥ 73,570 $ 703,696
2008 75.849 706,291
2009 62,605 582,969
2010 63,752 593.640
2011 and afier 186,420 1,735,924
Total ¥ 464,196 $4,322,526
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10. Income Taxes:

(1) Significant components of deferred tax asseis and liabilities as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen LS. dertlars
2005 2004 w005
Deferred 1ax assets:
Employees’ bonuses acerued ¥ 2,838 ¥ 2,529 3 26423
Reserve for emplovees’ retirement benefits 10,769 10,733 100,276
Write-down of inventories — 1,357 —
1.0s5 on revaluation of securitics 2,559 2,279 23,827
Loss on revaluation of fixed assets 3,136 3413 29,198
Loss on impairment of fixed assets 7.808 — 72,709
Depreciation - 237 —
Tax losses carvied forward 8,946 8,086 83,304
Unrealized gains on sale of fixed assets 3.099 3,407 28,860
Reserve for extraordinary repair 915 1.869 8518
Accrued expenses 2242 2,078 20,873
Others 7.121 5,360 66,323
Subtotal of deferred 1ax asseis 49.433 41,358 460,311
Valuition allowance (13,149 (7,110) (122,397)
Total deferred tax assets 36,289 34,248 337914
Deferred tax tabilities:
Gain on securities contribution to employee retirement benefit trust (3.75) (3.75%) {34,960)
Net unrealized holding gain on other securities (32,331) (25,747) (301.067)
Depreciation (5910 (3.946) (55.036)
Special tax purpose reserve (6,396) (7,332) {59.550)
Unrealized loss from sale of fixed assets {401} (533} (3,737}
Others (7.193} {6,598) (66.971)
Total deferred tax habilities (55,986} {47,910) (521,327)
Net delerved tax assets (liabilities) ¥(16.697) ¥(13,662) $(183,413)

{2) Reconciliation of the statutory tax rate 1o the effective income tax rate for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, are

as [ollows:

2005 2004
Slatutory lax rate 37.5% 37.5%
Increase {decrease) in taxcs resulting from:

Amortization of excess of investment cost over underlying net assets of consolidaied subsidiaries 0.2 05
Equity in net earnings of invesice {0.8) {1.0)
Permanently non-deductible expenses for wax purposes, such as entertainment expenses 1.2 4.3
Permanently non-taxable income, such as dividend income {0.6) (©.5)
Impairment loss 13 —
Other 2.0 (1.3}
Effective income tax rate 40.8% 39.5%




11. Retained Earnings:

The Japanese Commercial Code provides that unappropri-
aled retained earnings equivalent to at least J0% ol cash
dividends and directors’ bonuses paid by a company be
appropriated as a legal reserve until the sum of additional
paid-in capital and such reserve equals 25% of its capital
stock. This legal reserve may be used 1o reduce a deficit
upon approval of a general shareholders’ meeting, or
wransferred to capital stock upon approval of the Board of
Directors. To the extent that the sum of additional paid-in
capital and the legal reserve exceeds 25% of its capital

stock, a company can release the excess portion within the

12. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities:

shareholders’ equity upon approval of a general sharehold-
ers’ meeting. The released excess portion will be available
for payment of dividends. in presentation, the amount of
the legal reserve is included in retained earnings in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In Japan, dividends proposed by the Board of Directors
out of earnings accumulated as of the end of a fiscal year
are approved at the general shareholders’ meeting in the
jollowing fiscal year. In the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, dividends are shown as a reduction

of retained earnings in the year approved and paid.

Commitments made by the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries amounted 10 ¥371,084 million ($3,435.482
thousand) for the construction of vessels and (o Y418
million ($3,894 thousand) for the purchase of equipment
as of March 31, 2003.

Comtingent liabilities [or notes receivable discounted
and endorsed, loans guaranteed and joint debt of indebied-
ness as of March 31, 2005, were as {ollows:

Thousands of

Mitlions of yen U, doblurs 45
Nates receivable discounted and endorsed Y 66 $ 613
Guarsniees of loans 83.626 778,713
Joint debt of indebiedness 47,003 437.686
Toral ¥130,695 51,217,014

13. Statements of Cash Flows:

A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalenis in the consolidated statements of cash flows and account balances of the
consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2003, are shown below,

Thousands of

Milltons ol yen 1.5, dollars
2003 2004 2003 2005
Cush and time deposis ¥66,740 ¥65,373 ¥80,789 $621 472
Time deposits with maturity of ever three months (1.712) (1.741) (985) (15.944)
Cash and cash equivalents ¥65,028 ¥63,632 ¥79.804 $605,528

14. Accounting for Leases:

Finance leases, except those for which the ownership of
leased assets are deemed 10 be transferred 1o lessees, are
accounted for by the method similar 10 that applicable 1o

ordinary operating leases. Finance leases of several overseas

consolidated subsidiaries are accounted for as capital leases
and recognized as sales/purchases of assets on installment
payments.
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(1) Finance leases accounted for as operating leases

As lessees

a.

Acquisition cost. accumulated depreciation and net balance at end of the year of leased assets as of March 31, 2005 and

2004, which included the portion of interest thereon, would have been shown in the balance sheets as {ollows, if the

leased assets had been capitalized.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U5, dollars
2005 2004 2005
Ket halance Net balane Net balince
Acquisiion  Accumulated  atend Acymsion  Accumulated  atend Acquisition  Accwmulated atend

cost depreciaion  of the year cost depreoation  of the year vosl depreciation  of the year

Vessels Y 5912 Y 1,843 ¥ 4069 ¥14431 Y 6439 ¥ 7992 $ 55054 $ 17,165 $ 37,889
Equipment and fixtures 50,276 15,122 35,154 33300 12591 22709 468,167 140814 327353
Other tangible fixed assets 2,240 1,291 949 2,544 1,158 1,386 20853 12,016 8,437
Total ¥58,428 Y8256 ¥40,172 ¥32275 Y20,188 ¥32,087 3$5H.074 $169.995 $374,079

Future lease rental payments as of March 31, 2005, which included the portion of interest thercon, are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U, dallars
Within one year ¥ 6,051 $ 56,345
More than one year 33,506 312,003
Total ¥39,557 $368 348

Lease rental expenses, depreciation and interest expenses for the year ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, are as [ollows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of
LS. dollars

005 2004 2003 2005
Lease rental expenses for the year Y6995 ¥6,588 ¥6,931 $65.138
Depreciation (4,262 5,603 5,611 38,307
Inlerest expenses 864 668 1124 3,046

As lessors

a.

Acguisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net balance at end of the year of leased assets as of March 31, 2005 and

2004, are as follows:

Thausands of

Millians of yen U.5. dollars
2005 2004 2003
Net hatance Mel halance Net hatance
Acquisition Accumulated alend  Avguisiton Accumualated 21 end Acquisition  Accumulated atend
cost depreciarion ot the year cost depreaation  of 1he year cost depreciation ol the year
Equipment and fixtures ¥258  y242 ¥16 Y264 Y242 ¥22 $2,400  $2,251 S149
QOiher wangible fixed assels 60 33 33 80 40 40 618 311 308
Total ¥324 ¥275 ¥49 Y344 yzaz ¥62 $3.018 52562 5457




b. Fulure lease rental income as of March 31, 2005, which included the ponion of interest thereon, is as follows:
Thausands of

Millions of yen u.s. dellars
Within one year ¥ 48 3 444
More than one year 132 1.229
Toal ¥ige $1.673

¢. Current lease rental income and depreciation for the year ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2003, are as follows:
Thousands ol

Millions of yen US. dollars
2005 2004 003 2005
Lease rental income for the year Y50 ¥55 ¥52 5469
Depreciation 11 13 13 105

(2) Operating leases
As lessces

Future lease rental payments as of March 31, 2005, are as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen 5. dollars
Within cne year ¥ 40,096 $ 373366
More than one year 230,879 2,149.913
Tnal ¥270,975 $2,523279

As lessors
Future lease renial income as of March 31, 2005, are as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U5, dollars

Within one year Y 390 $ 3,033
More than one year 1,147 10,682
Total Y1.537 $14,315
15. Derivative Transactions:
(1) Contents of, policies for, and objectives in the use of swap comracts, interest rate cap contracis and other tech-

derivatives niques. To aven foreign exchange risk associated with for-
The Company and 1ts consolidated subsidiaries employ eign currency assets and liabilities, the Company and its
various financing methods to obtain funds necessary for consolidated subsidiaries make use of forward foreign cur-
the conduct of their operations. In addition, a substantial rency contracts, currency swap contracts and other tech-
portion of wtal assets and liabilitics is denominated in niques. Similarly, to deal with the risk of price fluctuations
foreign currencies. Accordingly, derivative financial instru- in fuel. the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries uti-
ments are used to hedge and manage the ineviiable risks lize fuel swap contracts and other techniques. However,
of Nucteations in interest rates and foreign currency rates, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries do not
Specifically, to avert interest rate risk associaled with bor- engage in trading or in speculative use of derivative

rowings, bonds and other [inancial instruments, the Com- financial instruments.

pany and 1ts consolidated subsidiaries utilize interest rate
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Regarding hedge accounting for derivative financial

instruments, the following methods and policies are applied.

a. Hedge accounting method
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries nainly
adopt a delerred hedge method that requires the Com-
pany to mark the derivative financial instrumenis effec-
tive as hedges to market, and to defer the valuation
loss/gain. For forward foreign exchange contracts and
currency swap contracts that meet the required condi-
tions under the accounting standard, the Company and
its consolidated subsidiaries translate hedged foreign
currency assets and liabilities at the rate of these con-
tracts. In addition, for interest rate swap comracts and
interest rate cap contracts that meet specified condi-
tiens under the accounting standard, the related inter-
est differentials paid or recetved under the contracts are
included in the interest income/expenses of the hedged

financial assets and liahilities.

b. Principal hedging techniques and items hedged

Principal hedging techniques Principal items hedged

Currency swap contracts Foreign cumency berrowings
and bonds

Interest rate swap contracts Borrowings, bonds and loans

Fuel swap contracts Purchase price of fuel

Forward foreign exchange  Forecasted foteign currency
contracls transaclions

¢. Hedging policy
Based on intemnal rules and regulations, including the
Company’s Rules for Risk Management Employing
Financial Instruments, the Company and its consoli-
dated subsidiaries enter into hedging wransactions to
offset the risk of market rate fluctuations, etc., for

items to be hedged.

d. Method for evaluating effectiveness of hedging
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries analyze
the ratios of the cumulative amount of market fluctua-
tion or cash flow of the hedging financial instrumenis
and the hedged items.
For interest rate swaps and interest rate caps that meet
specilied conditions under the accounting standard, the
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries omit evalu-
ating effectiveness of hedging methods.

(2) Risks inherent in derivative iransactions

Derivative transactions have an inherent markez risk,
which is derived from [uture changes in market prices
{currency rates, interest rates and prices), and a credit risk,
which is derived from the counterparty or counterparties
10 the derivative transaction becoming unable 16 perform
their contractual obligations. The derivative financial
instrumen:s uiilized by the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries are only those which offset the fluctuaiion of
fair value of underlying financial assets and liabilities,
thereby the Company and its subsidiaries are not exposed
to material marker risk. The counterparties in the deriva-
tives transactions are financial institutions with high credit

ratings, implying that credit risk is immaieriai.

(3) Risk management for derivatives

The derivative transactions of the Company and its con-
solidated subsidiaries follow the internal approval process
specilied in the Company’s Rules for Risk Management Em-
ploving Financial Instruments and other rules as well

as regulations and are subject o internal control operated
principally by the divisions in charge of accounting. In
addition, to prevent improper transactions, the back-olfice
function for these transactions is performed by a diflerent
personnel of the Company and its consclidated subsidiar-
ies other than those stalf directly involved in the dealings.
The contract {netional) amounts and other information
related o derivative financial instraments are reported 1o
a direclor in charge periodically, and, as necessary, to the

Board of Directors.

{4) Supplementary information regarding liems related 1o
market price of transactions (As of March 31, 2003
and 2004)

The contract {notional) amounts of interest rate swap

contracts and currency swap contracts in the following

table are the basis for calculating exchange amounts of
interest and are not the actual exchange amounis. For this
reason, these amounts are not indicators of actual market
risk and credit risk exposure of the Company and its

consolidated subsidiaries.




Thousands of

Millions of yen U5, doftars

2005 2004 2005

Contracts Unrealized  Comiracts Unrealized
outstanding  gain {loss) ouistanding  gain (loss)

Conuacts Unrealized
outstanding  gain (loss)

1. Interest rate-related

Interest rate SWAps:

Receive fixed, pay fleating Y¥14,098 Y863 Y19204 Y 1,539  $I139658 $8038
Receive floating. pay fixed 10,763 (838) 15.784 (1,552) 100,224 (7,807)
2. Currency-relued
Forward [oteign currency exchange contracts:
Sell Buro, buy Japanese ven 1,230 4) 172 (7 11,449 37
Buy H.K. dollar, sell Jupanese yen 350 (1) 361 {16} 3,256 {5)
Buy Fura, sell Japanese yen 142 1 163 N 1,318 7
Buy Thai Buht, seltl Japanese ven 124 (3) 161 (8) 1,151 29
Buy U.S. dollar, sell Japanese ven 175 2 133 3) 1.626 14
Seli U.5. dollar, buy Japanese yen 2,580 146 —_ — 24026 1,355
Others 444 (9) 315 (13) 4,180 (84}
Currency swaps:
Receive Japanese yen, pay U.S. dolfar 120 14 150 21 1,119 134
Receive U.S. dollar, pay Japanese yen 5,100 (43) o — 47,490 (402)

Notes: 1. The exchange rate prevailing at the end of the fiscal year for translation of forward foreign exchange transactions is the forward forcign

exchange rate.

2. The values of currency swap and inlerest rate swap transactions are valued at the market rates veported by the financial institutions
handling these transactions for the Company, as of the end of the consolidated fiscal year
3. Items for which hedge accounting is applied are excluded from the above wble disclosure.

16. Accounting for Employees’ Retirement Benefits:

(1) Owtline of employees’ retiremera benefit plans

The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries
have the following defined henefit plans: the Tax Qualified
Pension Plan, the Japanese government’s Emplovees’ Pen-
sion Fund, and a lump sum payment system. In addition,
i certain cases the Company and its consolidated subsid-
laries may provide supplementary retirement payments

(that are not considered part of actuarially computed

employees’ retirement benelits under accounting standards
for retitement henefits) when employees retive ov atherwise
leave the Caompany ar its consolidated subsidiaries.

In addition, certain overseas consolidated subsidiaries
have established defined contribution plans or defined
benefit plans, and the Company has set up an employee

retirement benefit trust.
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(2) Amounts related to projected benefit obligations (As of March 31,

2005 and 2004}

Thousands al

Millions of yen U5, dellars
2005 2004 2005

Projected benefit obligations ¥(89.159) ¥(87.751)  ${830,239)
Pension assets (Note) 79.197 73.690 737,469
Unfunded obligations (9,962) (14,061) (92,770)
Unrecognized pension assels — (4.634) —
Unrecognized actuarial accounting differences (2,192} 5,675 (20,410)
Net obligatiens on the consclidated balance sheets {12,154} {13,040) (113,180)
Prepaid pension costs 7.020 6,186 63,304
Reserve for emplovees ‘retirement benefits ¥(19.174) ¥{19,226) $(178,5+44)

Nuote: Pension assets related ta jointly established Emplayees’ Pension Fund of ¥3,343 million (331,132 thousand) and ¥3,717 million as of March

31, 2005 ard 2004, respectively, are not included in pension assets above,

(3) Amounis related to retirement benefit costs (As of March 31, 2005 and 2004)

Thousands ol

Millions of yen 13.5. dollars
2003 2004 2005

Service cosls ¥4,232 ¥4.751 $39,405
Interest costs 1,290 1.336 12,018
Expected return on plan assets (770} (550} (7,172)
Amortization of actvarial differences 547 2,411 5,004
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 128 — 1,191
Retirement benefit costs Y5,427 ¥7.948 $50,536

Note: In addition to the costs shown above, certain consolidated subsidiarics had Y90G million (58,432 thousand) and Y373 million for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. in defined contribution retiement benefit costs. Besides the retivement benefit costs shown
above, certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries treated the amount of defined contributions paid to their Employces’ Pension Fund as

rezriement benefit costs.

(4) Assumptions in calculation of the above information were as lollows as of March 31, 20035 and 2004:

2005 2004
Method of attributing the projected benefits to periods of service straight-line basis straight-line basis
Discount rate mainly 2.0% mainly 2.0%
Expected rate of return on plan assets mainly 2.0%-3.0% mainly 2.0%-3.0%
Amortization period of unrecognized prior service cost mainly 8 years mainly 8 years
Amortization period of unrecognized actuarial diflerences mainly 8 years mainly 8 years

17. Financial Information by Industry Segment:

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries operate in seven businesses: Shipping, Logisiies, Cruise, Terminal and

Harbor Transport, Shipping-Relaled Services, Real Estate and Others,

The [ollowing tabulation presents certain segment information lor the years ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.




For the year ended March 31, 2005:

Millions of yen

Termind and  Shipping- Elimination
Tt bor Relaed and Consolidated
Shipping Lopistics Cruise Transpon Servites  Real Estae Others Total Unallocation Toral
Revenues:
(1) Revenues from
Cuslomers Y1,020.758  Y356,308  Y33,402 Y 82,043 Y40,777 Y10,04] ¥ 62769 ¥L006098 Y —  YLA06.0YB
{2) Inter-segment
revenues 1936 890 30 26967 3967 2915 39.260 759063  (75963) —_
Total revenues 1.022,694 357,198 33432 1000 44,744 12,956 102,029 1.682,063 (75965) 1606098
Operating costs
and expenses 872,791 348831 37,060 104863 44,632 10,114 102,381 1,520,672 (75949)  1.444,723

Operating income Y 149903 ¥ 8367 Y(3628) ¥ 4147

¥ 112 ¥ 2842 ¥ (352 ¥ 16139 ¥ {16} ¥ 161375

Income before
extraordinary items ¥ 146,140 ¥ 8135 Y(4784) ¥ 398

Y 364 Y3305 ¥ 1061 ¥ 134819 ¥ (16) ¥ 154803

Assets Y 873898 YI176,218 ¥36518 ¥ 84425 Y46.009 ¥Y51,488 YIB86,259 Y1 454815 ¥21412 Y1 A476,227
Depreciation

and amoertization 52372 4,938 2,859 3,104 1,389 F.092 1,060 66,814 — 66,814
Impairment loss of

fixed assets 38 5,140 7.947 427 204 6,012 149 20,607 — 20,607
Capital expenditures 168,461 14,766 1,256 3,948 2,469 987 1,682 193,569 — 193,569

Thousands ol U.%. dellars

Termuinal and  Shipping- Elimination
Harbor Related and Consolidated
Shipping Logistics Cruise Transpon Scrvices  Real Esizie Orhers Towal Unallocation Total
Revenues:
(1} Revenues from
customers $9,505,153 $3,317,883 $311,038 § 763,975 $379,706 $ 93497 $ 58450F $14.955,753 ¢ — $14,955,753
(2) Inter-segment
revenues 18,027 8,288 276 251,107 36,944 27,146 363,582 707,370 (707,370) —
‘Total revenues 9,523,180  3326,171 311,314 1015082 416065 120643 950,083  15,663.123 (707,370) 14,955,753
Operating costs
and expenses 8127310 3248260 345094 976471 415602 94,177 953,356 14,160,270 (707.218) 13,453,052

Operating income $1.305870 & 77011 $(33,7R0)% 38611

$ 1,048 § 26460 $ (32733 $ 1,302853 % (152) $ 1.502,70%

Inceme before
exiraovdinary items  $1,360.830 3 75752 ${44545)% 3,708

$ 5252 $§30,779 $ 9887 % 1441658 % (151 % 1,441,500

Assets $8.137.600 $1.640913 $340,046 $ 780,151 $428.428 $476450 $E.734420 $13,347.017 $199380 313,746,406
Depreciation

and amortization 487 678 45,084 26,625 28,903 12,931 10,170 9,876 622,167 — 622,167
Impairment loss of

fixed assets 351 47,8635 74,000 3,974 2,733 61,572 1,390 191.885 — 191,885
Capital expenditures 1,568.688 137,407 11,605 36,738 22991 9195 15,660 1.802 490 — 1,802,490

{1} In line with the promulgaiion of the Pantial Revision 1o
Standards for Accounting for Retirement Benefits (Cor-
porate Accounting Standards Guideline No. 3, March
16, 2005) and Guidelines for Applying Pariial Revision
to Standards {or Accounting for Retirement Benelits
{Guideline No. 7 for Applying Corporate Accounting,
Sumndards, March 16, 2005), the Company elecied w0
and did apply these standards in its consolidated fiscal

accounts for the year ended March 31, 2005, As a
restlt, both operating income and ordinary income
increased by the following amounts: in the shipping
segment, ¥330 million; in logistics, ¥17 milkion; in
cruise. ¥4 million; in terminal and harbor transport,
¥8 million: in shipping-related services, ¥11 million;

in real estate, ¥1 million; and in others, ¥10 million,
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(2) Until the year ended March 31, 2004, the Company

has recorded certain costs related (o foreign vessels
officers, etc., as an other expense. From the year
ended March 31, 2005, however, the Company

has begunt accounting for this as a cost ol sales, in the

“costs and expenses” category. Adopting this method

of accounting for such costs caused a ¥1,898 million
inerease in operating costs in the shipping segment,
compared with the previous method of accounting,
and consequently a ¥Y1,898 million decrease in oper-
ating income. Income before exiraordinary items was

not affecled.

For the year ended March 31, 2004:

Miilions of yen

Terminal and  Shipping- Elimination
Harbor Related and Consohdaled
Shipping Logistics Cruise Transport Services  Real Estate Others Total Unallocation Toual
Revenues:
(1) Revenues from
customers YS77,501  ¥293961 Y29869 Y B1447 Y38187 YIOI8+ ¥ 67,171 Y1 398320 ¥ — ¥1398320
(2) Inter-segmemnt
revenues 2364 1,016 — 20,910 4,298 2429 35,620 66,643 (06,643) —
Total revenues B79.865 294 977 29869 102,357 42,485 12,613 102,797 1,464,963  (66,643) 1,398,320
Operating costs
and expenses 788,543 291 411 35316 101,752 42470 9,559 104,035 1373086 (66,699) 1,306,387
Operaling income YOI322 ¥ 3566 ¥(5447) ¥ 605 ¥ 15 Y3054 ¥ (1238 ¥ 91877 ¥ 3 ¥ 01933
Income belore
extraordinary items Y 76875 ¥ 3165 ¥(66035) ¥ (2048) ¥ 28+ ¥ 3367 ¥ (393) ¥ V4643 ¥ 20 ¥ 74663
Assets Y7727%9  Y156,737 ¥47931 ¥ 80,006 ¥43,718 ¥50,484 ¥151881 ¥L1312953 Y0371l ¥)376664
Depreciation
and amortization 50,909 4,630 3,710 2855 417 1,15 1,017 65,689 — 65,689
Capital expenditures 94831 11,653 29729 4275 610 1,488 737 143,353 — 143,353
For the year ended March 31, 2003:
Millions of yen
Terminal and  Shipping- Elimination
Harbor Related and Consolidaled
Shipping Lopisties Cruise Transport Services  Reat Estate Others Totat Unallocation Tenal
Revenues:
{1} Revenues [rom
customers Y788.084  Y260.353  Y30543  ¥30,791 ¥30627 Y1103 Y 68741 Yi249242 ¥  —  Y1249242
(2) Inter-segment
TCVEnLes 1,637 926 — 15,236 2,778 2,711 31,219 54,507 {54,3507) —
Total revenues 789,721 261,279 30,543 66,027 42,405 13,814 99,960 1303749 {54.507) 1,246,242
Operating costs
and expenses 728,901 255,167 31,121 64,959 42,115 10,380 102012 1,234,655  {(54.536) 1,180,119
Operating income Y 60820 Y 6112 ¥ (578) Y 1068 ¥ 290 Y 3434 ¥ (2052) ¥ 69094 ¥ 29 ¥ 69,123
Income hefore
extraordinary items Y 42855 ¥ 6186 ¥{I962) ¥ B8 ¥ 35390 ¥ 3552 ¥ 1292 ¥ 33400 ¥3056) ¥ 50344
Assets ¥740,122  ¥148,395 ¥03,879 Y8394C ¥43,762 ¥31,710 Y13l 446  ¥1.263260 ¥23910  ¥1.287170
Depreciation
and amonization 52,451 4,176 3,826 1,936 1446 1,122 1.154 66,111 _ 66,111
Capital expenditures 60.347 10,314 5,121 3492 1613 1,546 690 89,123 — 89,123




(1) From fiscal 2002, the Company segregated the Termi-
nal and Harbor Transpor segment {rom the Shipping-
Related Services segment. In addilion. management
has now included the Qil Wholesaling business in the
Others segment and shifted the Air Freight business
froin the Logistics segment to the Others segment.
These recategorizations were made to better disclose
the segment information by business in line with the
recent changes in the operation and scale of the com-
pany and its conseclidated subsidiaries. In the Terminal
and Harbor Transport segment, the elfect of these
changes was 10 boost revenues by ¥66,027 million,
operating income by ¥1,068 million, income before
extraordinary items by ¥878 million, total assets by
¥83,946 million, depreciation and asnortization by
¥1,936 million, and capitat expenditures by Y3,492
million. These line iilems declined by the same amounts
in the Shipping-Related Services segment. [n the Logis-
lics segment, income before extraordinary items and
assets dropped ¥60 million and ¥4,704 million, respec-
tively. For Oil Wholesaling, the decreases were ¥75,926

in revenues, ¥301 million in aperating income, ¥277

18. Subsequent Event:

million in income before extraordinary items, ¥12,042
million in assets, Y17 million in depreciation and amor-
tization, and ¥3 million in capital expenditures.

In the Others segment, these line items expanded
by the same amounts as the Oil Wholesaling dropped,
except with income before extraordinary items, which
increased by ¥337 million, and assets, which were up
¥16,746 million.

(2) Although vessel expenses and long-term charter
charges related 10 vessels other than coatainer ships
used 10 be recognized in the vear in which they
incurred, from the year ended March 31, 2003, the
Company changed its accounting such that in principle
they are now recognized upon completion of arrival
back at the port of origin, As a result of this change,
sales based upon the new method were Y1,428 million
(511,882 thousand) lower, while the cost of sales was
¥8,383 million ($69,748 thousand) lower. As a result,
operating income, ordinary income and income before
income taxes and minority interests each increased by
¥6,955 million ($57,866 thousand).

On June 29, 2005, the shareholders approved the following appropriations of retained earnings of the Company:

Thousands af

Millions of yen U, dollars
Retained earnings at March 31, 2005 ¥ 65,293 3 607,996
ransfer from reserve for speciflic tax purposes 1,926 17,939
Cash dividends (12,820) {119,376)
[Jirectors bonuses (100) (9";1)
Transfer 10 reserve far specific tax purposes (25,700} (239,318)
Retained earnings to be carried forward ¥ 28,399 $ 266,310
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Kasumigaseki Bldg. 32nd Floor
3-2-5, Kasumgaseki, Chiyoda-ku,
Tokyo 100-6088, Japan

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors of Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NIPPON YUSEN
KABUSHIKI KAISHA and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2005 and 2004,
and the reiated consolidated statements of income, sharebolders' equity, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2005, all expressed in
Japanese Yen. These consolidated financial statcments arc the responsibility of the
company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on owr audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in
Japan. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial stalemenis. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as wcll as evaluating the overall consolidated financial
statement prescntation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the consolidated financial position of NIPPON YUSEN
KABUSHIKI KAISHA and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2005 and 2004,
and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash {lows for each of the three
years in the period ended March 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan.

As described in Note 3.N.(1), effective from the year ended March 31, 2003, NIPPON
YUSEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA and its consolidated subsidiaries changed their
accounting of vessel expenses and long-term charter charges related to vessels other
than containerships to be charged to iImcome in principle upon completion of arrival back
at the port of origin rather than when incurred,

As described in Note 3.N.(2), effective from the year ended March 31, 2005, NIPPON
YUSEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA and its consclidated subsidiaries applied to its
consolidated financial accounts the Accounting Standards Related to Impairment Loss
on Fixed Assets.

As described in Note 3.N.(3), effective from the year ended March 31, 2005, NTPPON
YUSEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA and its consclidated subsidiaries applied to its
consolidated financial accounts the Partial Revision to Standards for Accounting for
Retirement, Benefits.

As described in Note 3.N.(4), effective from the year ended March 31, 2005, NIPPON
YUSEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA and its consolidated subsidiaries reclassified
crew-related expenses from other expense to cost of sales.




June 28, 2005

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha
Tokyo

Page 2

As described in Note 17, effective from the year ended March 31, 2003, NIPPON
YUSEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA and its consolidated subsidiaries segregated the
Ferminal and Harbor Transport segment from the Shipping-Related Service segment,
included the Oil Wholesaling business in the Others segment and shifted the Air
Freight business from the Logistics segment to the Others segment.

The amounts expressed in U.S, dollars, which are provided solely for the convenience of
readers. have been translated on the basis set forth in Note 2 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Tokyo, Japan
June 28, 20056
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OPERATING RISK

A wide variety of economic, political and social factors in
countries throughout the world have the poteriial wo impact
negatively the NYK Group’s mainstay shipping and inte-
graled logistics operations, as well as its cruise and other
businesses. Indicated below are some of the risks that could
aflect the Group’ eperating performance, share price and
financial conditions. The items described in the text below
represent the Group’s judgment of potential fulure events,
as of the end of the consolidated fiscal year under review

(1) A major shipping accident

The NYK Group operates and controls ships throughow
the world. We recognize the safe operation of vessels and
preservation of the environment as our top operational
imperatives. To ensure operational salety, we have imple-
mented our own safety management system, NAV900O, to
pursue environmental management certification. We have
established the Environmental Safety Measures Promotion
Council, whick is chaired by the president of NYK, 10
periodically review safety measures for shipping and other
operations. This structure is designed 10 guaraniee steady
improvements in the Groups safety levels and 10 ensure
appropriate responses in the event of an emergency. Never-
theless, a major unforeseen accident, such as an oil spill or
some other 1ype of envirenmental contamination, could
impact the operating performance and financial cendition
of the NYK Group.

(2) Changes in the overall shipping and freight markets
The NYK Group endeavors 10 create stable operating rev-
enue that is not affected by overall changes in the shipping
market. However, changes in the balance of shipping sup-
ply and demand, such as a falloff in international freight
demand or increasingly severe competition, could cause

a substantial decline in shipping revenues or ship rentai
income. Such a situation could impact the operating

performance and tinancial condition of the NYK Group.

{3) Fluctuations in currency exchange rates

Many of the NYK Group’ operations are deneminated in
foreign currencies, creating the possibility of losses resuli-
ing from exchange rate fluctuations. o reduce this risk,
where possible we denominate costs in U.S. dollars and
use hedging transactions, such as foreign exchange con-
tracts and currency swaps. When preparing consolidaled
financial statements, the NYK Group convents the financial

staternents of its overseas consolidaied subsidiaries into
yen. As a result, {luctualions in currency exchange rates
could aflect the operating performance and {inancial condi-
tion of the NYK Group.

(4) Changes in fuel prices

The NYK Group regularly purchases bunker il for use as
fuel for vessels operating throughout the world. Bunker oil
prices fluctuate according te changes in the global crude
oil supply and demand situation, and other changes involv-
ing crude il preducing countries. We minimize the effect
of such events by maintaining diverse fuel procurement
sources, engaging in futures transactions and conserving
on fuel consumpuon. Even so, steep rises or ongoing high
levels of erude oil prices could impact the operating
performance and financial condition of the NYK Group.

(5) Changes in regional economic conditions, affecting
global operational developments

As the NYK Group’s sphere of operations inciudes Japarn,

North America, Europe, Asia, the Middle East, and other

regions, economic conditions in each of these areas can

influence the Groups operations. We gather informaticn

ourselves and employ outside consultants to minimize

and, where possible, avoid such risks. Nevertheless, these

changes could affect the operating performance and {inan-

cial condition of the NYK Group. Some potential risks are

described below.

I. Disadvantageous political or economic factors

2. Government regulations, such as operational or invest-
ment permissions, taxes, foreign exchange controls or
commercial limitations

3. Joint operations or tie-ups with other companies

4. Social upheaval, such as wars, riots, terrorist acts,
piracy, inlectious diseases, strikes, and computer viruses

5. Earthquakes. isunamis, typhoons and other natural

disasters

(6} Stronger legislation on environmental preservation,
safety and security

The NYK Group recognizes the vital imporiance ol envi-

ronmental conservation activities and the security and

safety of its distribution supply chain to its worldwide

operations. Increasingly stringent public regulations to

preserve the environment include moves toward double-

kull construction, which reduces the danger of oil spills in




the event of an oil tanker collision; standards 10 reduce
COs, SOx, and NOx emissions; and the use of elecironi-
cally controlled engines. The costs required 1o respond 10
increasingly stringent legislative measures on environmen-
1al preservation, salety, and security could affect the operat-

ing performance and financial condition of the NYK Group.

{(7) Operational restructuring

The NYK Gioup has restructured its operations in past
vears. Future operational restructuring activities, if imple-
mented, could affect the operating performance and

financial condition of the NYK Group.

8) Investment plans

Although the NYK Groups plans include investment in the
expansion of its fleet, market conditions and other [luctua-
tions could prevent these plans {rom progressing as initially
intended. Such changes could affect the operating perfor-

mance and financial condition of the NYK Group.

(9) Fluctudtions in interest rafes

Internal funding provides the NYK Group with some ol the
{unds it requires for the invesiment in vessels and opera-
tions, capital equipment and operations. Other funds are
procured from outside sources. and some of this external
funding carries floating interest rates, The Group seeks

to minintize the effect of interest rate changes by moving
toward [ixed interest rates on the basis of i1s assumptions
about the interest rate environment. However, certain
changes in interest rates could impact the operating perfor
marnce and financial condition of the NYK Group, and

affect the future cost of procuring funds.

(10} Dispousal of vessels

Changes in shipping demand and supply conditions, as
well as technical developments and advances, cause physi-
cal limitations on the use of vessels as they become out-
dated or no longer comply with safety and other legal
requirements. In such cases. the NYK Group may dispose
of 1ts vessels or cancel cerain charter contracts. Such
activities could alfect the operating perlormance and
financizl condition of the NYK Group.

{11} Valuation losses on investment securitics
The NYK Group uses the current value methed to evaluate

its holdings of invesiment securitics that have explicit

market values, taking as the market value the average mar-
ket price during the one-month period preceding the end
of the {iscal year. As a result, shifis in siock market condi-
tions can result in valuation losses. Such changes could al-
fect the operating performance and linancial condiion of
the NYK Group.

(12) Impairment loss accounting for fixed assets

During the consolidated fiscal year ended March 31, 2005,
NYK and its consolidated subsidiaries posted an impair-
ment loss, as the Group took the early application of
impairment toss accouniing for all fixed assets to which
this method 15 applicable.

Although we have accounted for such losses already,
declines in real estate values, changes in the operating
environment, or the application of impairment loss
accounting standards to additional asset categories could
result in additional losses when disposing of [ixed assers.
This scenario could alfect the operating performance and
financial condidon of the NYK Group.

Furthermore, in the event that affiliated companies that
are accounted for by the equity method but that did not
apply impairmem loss accounting during the consolidated
[inancial year under review do begin to apply impairment
loss accounting in the future, profits from investments in
companies accounied for by the equity method could
decrease. As a result, the operating performance and
financial condition of the NYK Group could be affected.

(1.3} Retirement benefits plan

The NYK Group’s defined-benefit plans include a qualified
retirement benefits plan, an employees’ pension fund plan
and a temporary retiremment fund plan. Although currently
a member ol a 1ax qualified pension plan, legally the NYK
Group must shift to a different type of plan within 10
years, by the end of March 2012. Changes in the pension
plan, the investment of pension assets or the assumptions
behind the accounting for retivement benelits could aflect
the operating performance and [inancial condition of the
NYK Group.

The specilic items described above are some of the ongoing
risks that the NYK Group faces in its everyday operations,
and are not intended to encompass all potential risks.
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MAJOR CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES

(As of March 31, 2005)

Domestic (Millions of yen) {Millions of yen)
NYKS NYKs
ownership+ Total  Puaid-in vwnership+ Total  Paid-in
Company (%) Revenues assels  capital Company {%) Revenues assets  capital
SHIPPING Hol Corporallo 91 ¥3,869 Y2.957 Y50
‘\:,a hi Shipping Co., Lid. 69.66 Y5945 ‘35 005 Nippon Camamcr Tenmmla C n,, 2l 10,802 5,‘523 250
Badak LNG Transpor, Inc.* 25 6478 1,059 400 Nippon Comtainer Yuso Co., Lid. 51 7564 2,022 250
Camellia Line Co., [1d. S1 4,823 1,248 400 UNI-X (orpomllon‘ 61.44 22.100 14 700 934
Geneq Corporation! 53 15,698 18.475 242 Yusen KaurlLu Unyu Kmsha l.td ! 67.98 2720 1,522 50
Hachivma Steamship Co., Lid. 6873 13499 5945 500 Yusen Koun Co., Lid.* 76 9,595 2903 100
Kinkai Yusen Logistics Co., Tud, 100 18,954 14,544 450
SiiprinGg RELATD SERVICES
Kyoei Tanker Co., Lid." 30 9897 17,156 25850 e e — — —— ——-
e e T Chnba Kaiun bang\o Co., Lud. 100 ‘-r3-1l Y995 ¥30
Mitsubishi Ore Tr:lncpon Ca. Lid.* 37.29 7,187 5621 1,500 e m————— e —— T
T - - v l!lk'ma Marmc (,nrpor.lllnn 100 3_422 1,320 [+}]
MNYK Global Bulk Cerpuoration 100 80,273 66,147 4_150 . L R
oo Hoyo Kaiun Sungyo K.K. 100 1.046 1,358 100
NYK-Hinode Line, Lid. 100 25,283 16,903 2,100 — -
- Tt T T - ) A]npan Marine Science Enc. 100 1,313 949 420
Ogasawara Kaiun Co., Lid.* 50 1,608 3483 10 - . P -
Kaiyo Kogyu Co., Ltd. 190 3,206 3,008 90
Pacific Maritime Corporanion 100 5366 4559 50 -
X o T oTT o rm Kaiyo Sangyo Co., Lid. 100 347 462 20
Shinwa Kaiun Kaisha, Lid * 26.78 69483 35243 7,100 e i e e e ———— —m———— ——
Kanto Eisen Kaisha o4 ¥215 ‘;08" 10
Taiheiyo Kaun Co., L1d.* 2278 8,100 22 453 2‘750 — — ————————— e = -
T T Keihin Dock Co., Lid. 100 3,591  1.700 30
l"alhgl)o Kisen Kaisha, Lid.* 31.49 5406 5202 2,100 -
T e o Monohakebi Technelogy Institute
Tokyo Senpaku Kmstlmu.._l.ld. 100 64.83: 14,1 ?0,, ILSE) Co., le 100 1,091 661 99
Nagoya Kisen Katsha L |d 95.54 B72 1161 90
LoGistics
’ T - - - e Naikai Tug Boat Service Co., Lid.* 4453 5176 6,669 a3
Asahi Un)u Kaisha, le ! 95  ¥I11,180 ¥6.534 Y100 — —_ -
Nippuon Kaiyosha, Lid. S0 4078 10,756 480
TTT Cerporation o0 11,034 2 832 490 F
N Tttt T T |sh1mh0n Kuun Kaisha, Lid.* 50 3, 376 2 B47 50
NYK Logistics (Japan} Co., L1d. 100 375 364 100 R e e . et 4 et RESSENE
NYK Engincering (,0,‘ le. 100 521 19031 10
UNI-X Corperation’ 61.44 22,100 14,700 934 - - -
B - - e T T NYK Trading Ccnrpomllcm1 77.94 89 636 18,976 1,246
Yokohama Kyoritsu Warchowse - -
Co., Lid. 84.60 2,294 2,082 446 (‘)n.l Rmk 1 Kogyo Co L 1d 40 2,104 1,385 30
Yusen Air & Sea Service Co.. Lid. 61.41 76,977 49409 4301 banyo K:ll_]l Kaisha. id * +8.61 5419 8326 90
Yusen l'rcsh Chzm Co., le 100 1,131 328 300 :.;m\o \:mcc Co., L{d &0 1,606 754 50
Yusen Kairiku Unyu K1|sha lld ! 67,98 2,720 1,522 30 Sanyo delng Co., Lid. 44.84 6,334 4,456 100
Yusen Koun Co., Lid.! 74 9595 2003 100 Tomakomai Kaiun Co.. Lid. 100 1009 748 40
United Martime Co., Lid. 100 8§49 688 40
CrusE
Jp—— R - s e = R Yusen Naviee Co.. Lid. 100 1,007 441 [306]
NYK Cruises Co_, le 100 ¥10,018 Y10, 229 ¥2.000 T T TTT T T e T
Rul I'sml
TIERMIN.\I. Rl]l.r\'l'lIE) SERVICES C ) )
. . - - - Mciyu Fud(!:nm (,0 le * 50 ¥313 ¥1,698 Y225
Asahi Un\u Kals“aa Lid.} 95 ¥ILI1B0 Y6534 yloo T ¢ - e --oTm
e e e e e — - NYK Trading Corpn:)rauon1 77 9‘1 89636 18976 1240
Geneq Corporation! 53 15 698 18,475 242 T et . T )
- - e . Yokohama Bocki Tatemono Co., L1d. 71.39 596 1,090 215
Hirokura Co ., Lid. 88.17 1319 q03 <0

Yusen Real Esiate Cotporation

100 5,253

13025 450




{Millions of yen)

Overseas (Millions of indicated tnis)

NYK% NYKS
ownership+ Totat  Paid-in ownership+ Total  Paid-in
Company {%) Revenues  assets  capital Company (%) Revenues  assets  capnal
OTHERs '»'Hirr'uua
Lr)sml \ach{ Club lnC i 100 7 ¥518 Y121 ¥300 Asxa L N(- Tran%pml l)u'l ‘-dn Bhd * 49 RMTO RM243 RMII
o ) Asia ING T Sdn. Bhd.* 49 RMI22 RM301 RM36
Daitoh Marine Engineering Co.. Lid. {00 1377 1,249 40 fista b Jransport ~an. R S, ki S
i [nternational Car Opcmmrs {Benelut)
Hikawamaru Marine Tower Co., Lid. 58.71 647 667 460 BVEA. EUL EUl  EUOL
Nippon Cargo Airlines Co., Lid.* 2777 96,499 56,606 21,600 Imernalmnal (,ar Opt rators L ld 100 !’.6 EZ L0.0]
Nippon Nozzle Seiki Co., ltd 50.78 1,377 1,272 42 \YK B‘-‘”‘Sh'P (AS“’) Ple., le,ﬁ,# 00 usss2 EEEZ}'_US%
_T - T A - 9 .
Nippon Yuka Kogyo Co., Lic. 100 913 1051 20 NYK Bulkship (Furope) 1td. oo A
- NYK Bulkship (USA) Inc. 100 USSS? l 5511 S5
NYK Accounting Co., Lid. 100 1263 1,773 9 — e em e S e ——— - o e
- i i e e NYK Group South Asia Pie Ltd ? 100 SP827  SP$9S qP}] 3
NVK Systems Restarch Insiiuie (NSR1)_ 100 1098 3238 99 N Line (Ausimla) Piy, 11, 100 ASIL  ASIS A
NYK Tradmg Corporanon' 7734 89636 18976 1246 \\v}( Line (Bumlu\’) B. V 100 EU? EU32  EUQ. 5
T'uyn Graphic Co., Lid. 100 849 994 100 \YK Line (Canada) Inc. 100 353 C$1 C$0.2
The Marunouchi Polestar Co., Lid.  47.24 602 244 50 RYK Liae (China) Co., L1d. R ‘100 Uss17 US“* I}SS2
o T R N Dewtschland) H 100 EUIl  EU22  EUI
Toyo Reefer Co.. Lid. 90 s29 570 10 YK Line (Reutschlanc C."‘_*i_.__ R :
T T o e T T NYK Line (Europe) Lid. 100 L£22 £24 L2
Yakohama Denko (Electric) Co, Lid. 90 1838 1,004 30 e
NYK I_me (Eumpc) RORO l.ld. 100 .C,4 £12 L() 3
Yusen Cordial Service Co., 1ad. 100 2,439 1103 Sfi I\YK le (Hong Knng} L ‘d 100 ]-{}\590 H}\$524 HK$55
Yusen Jyoho Kahasu Co., 11d. oo 2703 1070 B0 \YK Line (New Zeatand) le 100 NZ33  NZ$8  NZ3l
Yusen Travel Co., Lid. 100 3415 3772 270 NYK Line (Nonth America) Inc. 100 1JS8687  US%43 Us%S
Notes. T NYK Reefrs Lid. 100 Y¥9.719 ¥I4,964 V4,000
Noutes: ——— R - (i
* Fquity-method applicable company NYK Shipmanagement Pre Ld 100 USSI3 65813 US$0.5
I, (_?nmpania:s whusc_ operations span multiple divisions NYK Shipping Service (Thailanc) o
2. Former name: NYK Line (Asia) Pte Led. Co.. Lid. 100 B319  B663 B10
New name effective from November |, 2004 ] ‘_ )
3. Former name: Mobile Shipping Service Ltd. NYK i“fg_k_h_lf_u’ Lid. 60 7 B34 B2

New name effective from April 15, 2004.
1. Former name: New Wave Logistics (Singapore) Pre Ltd.
New name effcctive from September 20, 2004
5. Former name: PT. New Wave Logistics Indonesia.
New name effective fiom Getober 1, 2004,
. Former rame: PT. New Wave Warchousing Indonesia.
New name effective from October 1, 2004,

=

NYK guddmerlul (Chl!l.) I ldd

100 Cl i'2 265(11’6 080 CL F‘]‘T?

Saga Shipholding (JOM} le 100 Uhﬁ()’ 1is$183 UH‘S 1 S
cntered e s e s
Untled European C‘Ir Ldl rlcrs BN 50 IUZﬁQ l U289 EUb."’.

7.1|1I;E§0ng Tcrmlnal Scnlu:s le—,"— o SL;| HKSI10 H!\)T:Z? HKS1
I.OC!S‘I’ICS

GsY Corporal.llo.n—— ) 1060 U\S()(E US$134 U":-‘;S
\.' mhal LOSI‘:IIL; (C:lrw‘ga;):ré{ l-"-(;_L;d“ 10-0 bel _5_P$5 SP.\E\O‘ 1
New Wave Logistics (USA) Inc. 100 US$11 US%H4 US$0.93
\(\PI:I‘TL;:SSELJ & Rusuhara Lanka 55 SR437 SRO7 SRT
:V_Y-K—VLogisucs (Americas) Inc. ]L}t; [IS$3  USSE60  US$43
NYK Logistics (Asi;I) Pl;. Lla. 7 7100 SP34 B SP$2 SP:l
NYK Logistics (Australia) Puy. Lid. 100 AS55  ASI6  AST
NYK L ogis ics (Belgium) N.V.” o 100 JE;U')I [UBO (K]

6l
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{Millions of indicaled units)

(Mitlions of indicated units}

NYKS NYKS
ownership+ Total  Taid-in ownership+ Total  Paid-in
Company (%} Revenues  assets  capual Company (%) Revenues  assets  capilat
NYK Logistics (CIS) 1ad.* S() £s £1 £0. O(!Ol Yusen Air & Sea Service (Tam an) le 100 T\\ 3074 TW$5"B ™ $23

NYK lt“ngllLS (CZ( ch RL])uIJhL\ b R 0 100 Cl\120 CK+20 CK 387

NYK Logistics (Dewischland) GmbH 100 EU45  EULT HJ’,

NYK Logistics (Edam) B\, 100 EU3 EUl i U 02
NYK i_(;gi;ii.c-s-(t_u;u[:;‘c)‘Ltvd. T 5 £5
N‘(’K Loglsms (France) S.AS 100 EUIL] EU21 ]~U8
NYK Logistics (l';.)n;:l;;;!g) Lid. - 1007 l-iKSZ 18 HI\$195 HK3$116
NYK Logistics (Hungary) K. - ~100 HUF3,.219 HUH’\-IO HUE 200
]‘;T_".I'K Lugisti(;(aal)«_')‘s_,_z;.- T 98 _u__UlT EU25 EU3
NYK Logistics (Nederland) H \ IUU EU14 EU4 thi 03
NYK Logisiics (OCS) Inc. I uss7 use7 uss)
N‘:’K [.ogmm.s {Polska) Sp. 7(?5 o 1(;0 o P22b B P712 PZ2
NYK Logistics (Scandinavia) A.B. - IE)U— N QEI\SI _-_-S_Ekz-z)_ _%LKT

NYK Logistics (Singapore) Ple L1d * oo sP$37 §P$72 <P$0 3

NYK Logistics (Taiwan) Co., Lid. 51 TW$334 TW4362 T\\ 3147
NYK Logistics {T'hailand) Co.. lad. 76.9

B3,404 82,137 B‘!O
NYK logistics {UK} Consumer &

Retatl Lid. 100 £124 L70 £21
NYK Logistics (UK) Manufacwring &
Ruall Lid. 100 £139 £40
NYK Logistics (l WDL) Inc. 1og Usssl LIS%7
NYK Logsis Kaisha lberica 5.4, 100 EUY  EU3 Ul

QOrient Consolidation Service

(MK Lid. 100 HK$376 HK$l64  HKS$2

PT. NYK New Wave Logistics
Indonesia * 95 US515  US$5 USsl

PT. NYK New Wave Warchousing
]ndonesm

1c0 Us$2  Us510 Usss

PI Yusen Air zSI bga C'CT\ILL Indonesia 60 Ubbl() 11598 15502

Yusen Air & Sea Scrvice LAumraha)
Fiy Lid. 1o A2l A3S10 AS2

Yus:n A:r & Sea ‘ser\ ice (I’:cnelm) B. \’ lL}O EU2T  EU) 7 EUL

Yusrn Alr & Sen bcmne (Canada) lm 100 C‘S 10 C513 C$5
Yuq‘n ‘\1r& bu..s. Service (Chlna) le Hv0) HK‘FBZ Hk‘}a] 11 HKS$11

Yusen Alr &r Sea Service (Deulschland)
GmbH 100 EU33 EU25 LU4

Yusen Afr & Sca Service (Europe) BV, 100 EUO EU2¢ £1i19
Yusen Air & Sea Service (H.K) Lid.

100 HKS1,056 HKE509 HKS55

Yusen Air & Sea Service (Korea)

Co, Lid. 100 kew 16,949 KrRwE 427 Krw2 000

Yuq_n Air & Sea 5|_r\ ice {c\lngnp(‘lm)
e Lid. 100 SP357  5P$59  SPSLT

Yusen Air & Sea Service { Fhalldnd)

Co.. Lid 100 H2,295 il BI10D

Yuscn 1\1r &:r Sea Service (1)K Lid. 100 L17 Ly £l

Yusen Air & Sea Service (USA) lnL 100 USSIIL US$64 UStl4

Yusen Air & Sea Service Management

(Thalhmd) Co., lld 94,56 B22 B70 Bl

Yusen Shenda Air & Sea Service

{Shanghai) Ltd. 50 CNY329 CNY90 CNYS

Cruise
Crysial Cruises,Inc. 100 US$218 USHI08 USH0.04
Deciar Ply, Lid. 100 A$l5  AS19  AS38

International Cruise Management

Agency AJS 100 NOKI2 NOK4 NOK2

TerMINAL REU\TED Sk RVICES
Ceres Comamer Term:nals ]_umpc BN * 50 EUﬁ LU109 EUO.].

N‘rK Te rmmals (I\onh mncnua) [ne. IOO U5$223 U%MDU%O (101

NYK Terminals (Taiwan), Inc. 70 TWS(\L’: TW$310 TW?B] 50
Tips Co., Lid.» 22 B1,304 B1,163 BLOO
L0 Ub‘i).‘-) 525 U5$94 1S%3

Yusen Terminals Inc.

SHJPNr\G RLLATED Sl:R\*lCEs

Hikawa (Singapore} Pre. lid. 100 11 1 15 ‘v'ﬁé ¥3i3
OTHERS

NSRI (UbA) lm_ 100 18§51 US$LIB  US$0.1
NYK lnlcrn;nional (Nclhcrfﬂnds) BV 100 IEU8 Ll674 EU9
NYK lnlernzulonal LUSA) InL 100 U‘§$2 1]53128 US&"

NYK Imcrn.ulonal Ple 100 2 47 L20

+ Includes holdings of subsidiarics

AS  Australian dollar NOK Norway krona

B Thai bak NZ$  New Zealend dollar
CK  Czech horuna Pz Polish zloty

CLP  Chilean peso RM  Malaysian ringgit
CNY Chinese yuan SEK  Swedish krana

%  Canadian doliar SP$  Singaporcan dollar
EU fure SR Snlanka rupee
HK3 Hong Kong dollar TW3 New Taivan dollar
HUT Hungarian forint Us3 U.s. dollar

KRW Kercan won £ Pound sterling




DIRECTORS & AUDITORS

{As of April 1, 2005}

Chairman Takao Kusakari*

President Koji Miyahara*

FExecutive Vice Presidents Tadamasa Ishida*  Yukio Ozawa*

Senior Maraging Directors Takao Manji* Michio Tamiya*

Yasushi Yamawaki*

COMPANY INFORMATION

(As of March 31, 2005)

Company Name
Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha

Established
September 29, 1885

Paid-in Capital
¥88,331,033,730

Main Activities

Managing Direciors Takahire Ota* Hiromitsu Kuramoto
ging

Minaru Sato Yasumi Kudo

Koichi [noue Hiroshi Sugiura

Direcions Tadatoshi Mamiya Koji Usami

Koichi Acki Masahiro Aoyama

Directors** Hirayuki Shimizu  Yutaka Yasunaga
¥ &

Susumu Kikuchi Motoo lgawa

\:lasamichi Momoka Naoki Takahatu

\dakoto Igalashl ‘mshlharu Muram

Masato Katayama  Masahiro Kato

Hidenori Hene Yuji Semba

Mitsutoshi Nawa  Saburo Yamagata

Takamaru Ishida Toshinori Yamashila

Hiroshi Hatteri Naoya Tazawa

Yasuyuki Usui Tadaaki Naitoh

'Shm;i Koba) ashi TLL‘-»UiUlTl] OlSukl

Takeshi \flatsunaga Tal\ﬂakc I\.drdoka

Genta Ohyama Lanny Vaughn

Corporaie Auditors

(Full-time) Ryuji Narisada Kazuhira Kamiva

Qutside Corporate Auditors

(Part-rime) Keisuke Kitajima  Tsuyoshi Miyazaki

CHANGES (Eflective [rom June 28, 2005)

Director Candidates lhm) uki thmlzu Momo lgawd

‘\Aasammhl Morooka Susumu Kll\uchl

Auditor Candidatcs Shigeru Shimizu

Retiving Dircctors Tadal;o:.ln Mamlya Kop Usami

KGlChl AOkl Masahlro Aoyama

Retiring Divector=™ Genta Chvama
Y

Retiring Auditor Ryuji Narisada

* Representative Director
** These directors are not regulated by the Commercial Code of Japan.

1. Marine transportamon

2. Land 1mn'portduon

3. Agency business for marine tmmportauon and land
transportation

4. Warehousing

5. Harbor transpottation

6. Combined transpontation by sea, land and air, and agency
business connected therewith

7. Business rel;mng to marine exploitation and development

8. 52&(: and purchd% of \’t5<61>

9 Counseiling relating to building and repair of vessels and
marine structures

10. Business relanng to information an lrampanatmn

11. Loans to, guarantees for, and investments in other businesses
than those enumerated herein

12, Sale, puth'lse aml !Lﬁ.be of real estate

13. Possc::smn lease maintenance and management of marine
leisure fac1lmes

14. Business 1elatmg to travel pursuant Lo the Iravel Agency Law

15. Trades and sales of ernamental pldms

16. Other undertakings incidemal to, or connected with, the
items mentioned above

Employees
land: 1,283 Sea: 457 Total: 1,720

Head Office
3-2, Marunouchi 2-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0005, Japan

Mailing Address: C.PO. Box 1230, Tokyo 100-8613, Japan
Telephone: +81-3-3284-5151
Website: hup:Awww.nykline co.jp/
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

{As of March 31, 2003)

Closing Date The Companys books are closed on March 31 each year.

Ordinary General Meeting The ordinary general meeting of sharcholders is held in June each year.
2003 Ordinary General Meeting: June 28, 2005

Common Stock Number of authorized shares: 2,983,550,000 shares

Number of issued and owstanding shares: 1,230.188,073 shares
Percentage of

Number of total shares

shares held cutstanding

(thousands) (%)

Principal Shareholders

Japan Truslee qen ice Bank lad. (Trua[ Au.nunlf-) 112 284 9 1
The Mdsur -llLl‘-[ Pumk ofJ.a.p m, Lad. (Irusi Accmml:\ 104 403 8.5
Ehe Tokio Marine and Fire Ensurdncc Co., bLid. 57.275 4.7
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, T.td.
{Mitsubishj chw Industries, Limi:ed Ac‘cuum, Retiremment Benefit Trust Account) 54,717 4.5
Meiji Yasuch Life lnsuramc (_,ompan) 38,899 32
Thc B‘mk of Tok\o—\/hl.sublshl Lmuled 36, 978 3. 0
Mmuho Carpnuue Bank Itd 29,4]‘.” 2.4
TI“Ll‘:l & Cusmd) Services B.mk Ltd. {Trust Auounls) 18,96} 1.5
St.ne Street B.mk and Trust Lﬂmpany 18,231 1. 5
Japan Trustee Services B'mk Lid. (Trusl Anmum 4 12,561 1.1

Stock Exchange Listings NYKs shares are listed for trading on the [ellowing stock exchanges:
Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya

Stock Transfer Agent The Mitsubishi Trust and Banking Carporation
Head Office: 4-5, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-laz, Tokyo, Japan

Publication Of Pubtic Notices The Company’s public notices appear in the Nihon Keizai Shimbun. published in Tekye, Japan.
Financial Data can be viewed at the Website of Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha.

Independent Cestitied Public  ChuoAoyama PricewaterhouseCoopers
Accountant Head Office: Kasumigaseki Bldg., 32nd Floor, 2-3,
Kasumigaseki 3.chome, Chiyoda-ku. Tokyo 1003-6088, Japan







